
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

28 May 2019 
 
TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CABINET 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet on 
Wednesday, 5th June, 2019 at 10.00 am 

In the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
 
Leader of the Council – Councillor Michael Cooper 
Deputy Leader – Councillor Nigel Welton 
Councillors Martin Griggs, Chelcei Sharman, Paul Skinner, Aaron Spencer and 
Yvonne Stevens 

 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 3rd April 2019. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

D   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Friday 31st May 2019. 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (STANDING ITEM)*  
 

2   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
(STANDING ITEM) (Pages 9 - 12) 
 

 (The relevant excerpt from the minutes of the BTAC meeting of 20th March 2019 is 
attached.) 
 

3   QUARTER 4 REPORT - PERFORMANCE, RISK AND FINANCE (Pages 13 - 62) 
 

 (A report by Suzanne Rolfe, Transformation & Governance Manager, and Paul 
Julian, Chief Finance Officer) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Aaron Spencer  
 

4   BUSINESS RATES PILOT FUNDS (Pages 63 - 84) 
 

 (A report by Michelle Sacks, Deputy Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Michael Cooper, Leader of the Council  
 

5   APPOINTMENTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS (Pages 85 - 90) 
 

 (A report by Michelle Sacks, Deputy Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer)  
 

 
 

* In accordance with the Constitution, recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees referred to Cabinet (if any) shall be included at this point in the 
agenda (unless they have been considered in the context of the Cabinet 
deliberations on a substantive item on the agenda) within six weeks of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee completing its report / recommendations. 

 
 
Call-In –any decision taken by the Cabinet concerning an item on this agenda can be 
‘called in’ in accordance with the Constitution, within 5 working days of the decision 
notice being published.  It is expected that the decision notice will be published on                                   
7th June 2019.  Subject to this publication, the deadline for calling in a decision is             
5 p.m. on Friday 14th June 2019. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
the consideration of exempt or confidential items. 

 

Emergency Procedures In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are 
asked to leave the building via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to 

the Fire Assembly Point located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal 
Buildings. 

 
Alternative Versions - Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format 
such as larger text, Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on 
direct dial (01205) 314227 
 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Lorraine Bush, 
Democratic Services Manager, Municipal Buildings, Boston Tel. no: 01205 314224  e-mail 
lorraine.bush@boston.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
NOTICE OF DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET ON 3 APRIL 2019 

 
DATE OF PUBLICATION: FRIDAY, 5 APRIL 2019 

 
DEADLINE FOR CALL-IN: FRIDAY, 12 APRIL 2019 

 
NOTES: 
 
A COPY OF THE CABINET AGENDA HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED TO 
ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY FURTHER 
INFORMATION ON ANY ISSUE PLEASE CONTACT, IN THE FIRST INSTANCE, THE 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR OFFICER NAMED IN THE RIGHT HAND COLUMN. 
 

 
MEETING OF THE CABINET 3 April 2019 
 
 
Present: 
Councillor Michael Cooper, in the Chair 
Councillors Aaron Spencer, David Brown, Martin Griggs, Claire Rylott, Paul Skinner and 
Nigel Welton 
 
Officers –  
Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer), Head of Environmental 
Operations, Head of Regulatory Services, Head of Corporate Services, Head of Place 
and Space, Transformation & Governance Manager, Accountancy Manager (Revenues 
and Systems), Council Tax and Benefits Manager, Local Communities Development 
Officer & BTAC Grant Administrator, Transformation Officer and Senior Democratic 
Services Officer 
 
68   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 20 February 2019 were received and 
signed by the Chairman. 
 
69   APOLOGIES 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
70   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
71   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
There were no questions from members of the public.  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



72   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (STANDING 
ITEM)* 
 

The Parish Council Project Report had been considered by the Corporate and 
Community Committee on 7th February 2019 and the Committee’s recommendation was 
included in the report at paragraph 1.7. 
 
73   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

(BTAC) (STANDING ITEM) 
 

There were no recommendations from the Boston Town Area Committee.  
 
74   PARISH COUNCIL PROJECT 

 
 

 
DECISION 
 
That the continuation of working alongside Lincolnshire County 
Council on the rural isolation and loneliness project be supported. 
 
 

Portfolio 
Holder 

and 
Officer 

 
Cllr 

Cooper 
 

MS 

 

 
REASON FOR DECISION  
 
The Leader presented a report on the Parish Council Project, which had been set up to 
assist parish councils improve community engagement within their parish and identify 
other areas where they might need assistance, such as training, communication, 
improving democratic engagement and delivery of services. 
 
The project was set up following a rural isolation Task and Finish group, initiated by the 
Leader and established by the Corporate and Community Committee, which undertook 
a review two years previously resulting in recommendations to help rural isolation by 
working with parish councils.  
 
It was recognised that rural isolation was a complex issue and required a diverse set of 
activities to be coordinated and delivered in conjunction with multiple partners and 
agencies.  Many of the 11 recommendations of the Task and Finish group, attached to 
the report at Appendix B, related to issues that the Council could influence but not 
directly control.  It became clear through interaction with the parish councils that, by 
working closely with the parish councils and increasing their reach into their 
communities, this would be more likely to provide a more deliverable solution to 
reducing some of the impacts of rural isolation.  
 
The project group had sought to influence other partners by seeking to engage with 
other agencies to promote and highlight the impact of rural isolation.  At an event 
organised by the County Council, “Join the Dots”, the County wanted to hear from 
organisations about ideas about how to address a wide range of community issues. 

Page 2



Cabinet 
3 April 2019 

 

 
 

 
The project group pitched an idea involving parish councils and how they could further 
engage with their communities and become more active to address the concerns around 
loneliness.  Of all the proposals debated at that event, the County selected the proposal 
of the project group. 
 
Work had started on this collaborative project, which was led by the County Council, but 
which had several other partners within the project, to set up a pilot with two parish 
councils to identify those that are rurally isolated and lonely within those communities. 
 
This was involving two parish councils in the first instance as the pilot.  These parishes 
had already commenced community consultation, using two different methods in order 
to ascertain which will generate the most responses.  However, it should be noted, that 
each parish had a broad of residents/demographics and geography, which meant one 
size would not necessarily fit all; therefore, consultation was likely to be bespoke to each 
parish.  However, the remaining sixteen would all be able to benefit from the lessons 
learnt.  
 
At the time this report was considered, it was anticipated there would be some raw data 
available from the initial consultation exercises. 
 
There had been other improvements that had already been implemented: 

 Parish council newsletters 

 Parish council websites 

 Articles for village magazines and newsletters 

 Social media  

 Parish council liaison meeting and training events 
 
The project group’s progress report was attached to the report at Appendix A.  
 
The Corporate and Community Committee commended the report when the Committee 
considered it at its meeting on 7th February and resolved that: 
 

 Cabinet be recommended to support the continuation of working alongside 
Lincolnshire County Council on the rural isolation and loneliness project. 

 Cabinet acknowledge the hard work and effectiveness of the group. 

 A report be tabled back to the June 2019 meeting for the Corporate and Community 
Committee to allow consideration of the item further. 

 It welcomes the continuation of many of the new links with the parish councils that 
have come from the working group. 

 
The Leader commended the hard work of the staff involved in the project, which aimed 
to reach an understanding of rural isolation and help mitigate its impact, and the 
achievements of staff in improving links between the Council and parish councils as well 
as the parishes’ links with the community through newsletters and social media etc.   
The project had made a considerable difference to many people and, now that the work 
had become embedded, it would continue to make a difference in the future.   
 
Other Members echoed commendation of the project and appreciation of the work of the 
staff involved.  The project had been well received by the parishes and at various events 

Page 3



and meetings.  Initiatives such as the Data Protection Officer’s attendance at meetings 
to talk about scams, to which isolated people were more susceptible, would be 
welcome.   
 
Some Members commented that the expectation and legal responsibility already placed 
upon people standing to serve as parish councillors coupled with voluntary and good 
practice requirements might collectively have a negative impact on the numbers of 
people wishing to stand.  Although it was recognised that these additional 
responsibilities were inevitable and would bring improvements in the long-term, a 
potential shortfall had to be borne in mind.   

 

 
OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  
 
Not continuing with the project is likely see a decline in the relationship between parish 
councils and Boston Borough Council and undo all the good work that the parish 
councils have now started to rely on. 
 
Although the rural isolation joint working project is in its early stages, if this does not 
continue this will be a missed opportunity to work with other agencies to help reduce 
rural isolation and loneliness for the benefit of our residents. 
  

 

 
RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
 
None. 

 

 
RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  
 
None.  

 
75   QUARTER 3 REPORT - PERFORMANCE, RISK AND FINANCE 

 
 

 
DECISION 
 
1. That the quarterly monitoring information for Q3 be noted. 

2. The specific finance recommendations, summarised below, be 
agreed: 

 F1: To approve the reserve movements detailed in Table 6.  

 F2: To approve the updated capital programme as detailed in 
Table 10 

 F3: To write-off irrecoverable NNDR in the sum of £131,255.19 

 F4(i): To approve the procurement exemption for an electoral 
management software system, for a five year contract 

 F4(ii): To approve the procurement exemption for the planning, 
building control, and licensing and land charges software, for a 

Portfolio 
Holder 

and 
Officer 

 
 

Cllr 
Spencer 

 
SR/PJ 

Page 4



Cabinet 
3 April 2019 

 

 
 

three-year contract 

 

 
REASON FOR DECISION  
 
The Transformation & Governance Manager presented the quarterly report covering 
performance, risk and finance monitoring information for Quarter 3 of 2018/19 (April to 
December 2018). 
 
Performance information was set out in Appendix A and the following key points were 
highlighted: 
 
Areas of success and/or improvement 

 Processing of planning applications on or better than target 

 44 businesses visited to support business growth 

 368 housing completions and 63 empty properties returned to occupation 

 Benefit and Council Tax Support processing times above target 

 Over 98% of food businesses compliant 

 Swim sessions at GMLC above target 

 Information requests responses better than target 

 Sickness absence better than target 

 % abandoned calls to switchboard better than target 
 
Areas of concern and/or watching brief 

 Improved housing standards worse than target but recruitment underway 

 Waste and recycling performance worse than targets – being addressed regionally 
through the Waste Strategy for Lincolnshire  

 Market income below target – actions set out in the comments in the report  

 Business rates collection below target – expected to remain so at year end 

 Average waiting time for switchboard calls below target – target being reviewed to 
reflect change in process with more calls being dealt with at first point of contact 

 
There were no new strategic risks to report in Quarter 3. Full details of the strategic risks 
were set out in Appendix B.  The impact of the recent adoption of the Local Plan would 
be updated in Quarter 4.  The strategic risks for 2019/20 would be reviewed alongside 
the development of the next Corporate Plan.  The operational risks for 2019/20 were 
currently being reviewed by service managers as part of service planning for 2019/20 
and would be reported in Q1 of 2019/20.  
 
The main headlines with respect to financial management presented by the Portfolio 
Holder were as follows, with full details in set out in Appendix C to the report.   

 At the Quarter 3 point in the year the total net expenditure for the year to 31 March 
2019 was forecast to be £9.464m, compared to the budget for the year of £9.492m; a 
projected net underspend of £28,000 

 Table 1 of Appendix C detailed spend for the year against budget by service area, 
table 2 by portfolio holder and table 3 by corporate priority.  The Boston Town Area 
Committee (BTAC) was now included and separately identified in the tables for 
completeness and transparency 

 The detailed variances that made up the projected outturn position were set out in 

Page 5



section 3 

 Controlling Migration Fund expenditure was set out in section 4, table 4. 

 Trading income was set out in section 5, table 5 

 Reserves movements were set out in section 6, table 6 with recommendations for 
Cabinet approval 

 Treasury management information was set out in section 7 

 Capital information, set out in section 8, table 10, included a recommendation for 
Cabinet to approve the updated capital programme 

 Consultancy costs were set out in section 9, table 11 

 Debt collection, set out in section 10, table 12, included a recommendation for 
Cabinet to write-off irrecoverable NNDR in the sum of £131,255.19 

 Supplementary estimates were set out in section 11; Insurance in section 12, table 
14; Localisation of Business Rates and Council Tax Support Scheme in section 14, 
table 15; and other financial matters in section 15 

 Procurement exemptions were set out in section 13 with a recommendation for 
Cabinet to approve the procurement exemption for an electoral management 
software system, for a five year contract, and for Cabinet to approve the procurement 
exemption for the planning, building control, and licensing and land charges 
software, for a three-year contract 

 
In response to questions, it was confirmed that market rents had been collected 
voluntarily by the Town Centre Services Manager on most Saturdays and Wednesdays 
in the temporary absence of the Markets Officer.   
 
Under the Council’s Contract and Procurement Procedure Rules (specifically section 
3.1.2 (9) in this instance), exemptions over £25,000 needed to be approved by the 
Cabinet.  There were two exemptions to be considered for approval in this quarter.    
 
The Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer) gave further background regarding one 
of the exemptions, set out in recommendation F4(ii) - To approve the procurement 
exemption for the planning, building control, and licensing and land charges software, 
for a three-year contract.  The current contract, which had run for a number of years, 
was due to expire.  Soft market testing of the very limited number of contractors that 
existed had demonstrated that the time and resources of switching to a new supplier, 
including the need to put all the necessary processes in place, made this option too 
expensive.  Negotiations with the current supplier had resulted in securing a number of 
additional services whilst the costs remained within budget.  Therefore, the 
recommendation was to continue with the current contract with the ability to upgrade its 
extension through the waiving of procurement rules.   
 
In response to a question about the additional costs of training and legacy data etc., the 
Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer) explained that an upgrade was needed in 
order to comply with legislative requirements and, although there would be an impact of 
from the upgrade, it would be significantly less than changing to a new supplier.   

 
 

 
OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  
 
Alternative reporting arrangements. 

 

Page 6



Cabinet 
3 April 2019 

 

 
 

 
RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
 
None. 

 

 
RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED  
 
None.  

 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 10.30 am 
 

 

Signed by the Chief Executive  
 
       
 
 

5 April 2019 

 
 

 
 

 
These decisions will come into force (and may then be implemented) on the expiry of 
five clear working days after the date of this notice UNLESS the decisions are 
subjected to the Call-In procedure or are starred minutes requiring Full Council 
approval.  

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



EXCERPT FROM BTAC MINUTES OF 20TH MARCH 2019 
 
 
105   BTAC WORKING GROUP REPORT: PLAY AREA IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The Head of Place and Space presented a report from BTAC’s Play Area Working 
Group, which outlined the outcomes of the Open Spaces Working Group’s proposals for 
the use of £40,000 allocated to support Open Spaces improvements.  
 
Following the 2018 play site tour, BTAC Members requested details of potential future 
play area improvements to BTAC play areas to enable the Committee to continue its 
investment in outdoor play areas. 
 
At its meeting on 30 January 2019, the Committee proposed that £40,000 be allocated 
to support open space improvements and that the Open Spaces Working Group be 
tasked with preparing detailed proposals for the expenditure and reporting back to the 
Committee as soon as practicable. 
 
The Working Group agreed to prioritise St John’s Park and Shelton’s Field and asked 
the Play & Physical Activity Officer to obtain quotes in line with Boston Borough 
Council’s Procurement Regulations, from Play Equipment suppliers on behalf the 
Working Group, as follows. 
 

Site Improvements Available Funding 

St Johns
  

Play Panels – Musical, Manipulative 
Goal Posts 

£4,674 
 

Sheltons 
Field 

Higher Slide 
Four Tower Unit with two bridges 
Play and Stay with Net 
Crazy Scrambler Springer 

 
 
£18,431 

 TOTAL SPEND £23,105 

 
The Working Group met to evaluate the quotes and agreed that a spend of £23,105 
would provide the new equipment needed on both St John’s Park and Shelton’s Field.  
A breakdown of the preferred quote is appended for reference at Appendix A.  The 
Group also proposed that £1,800 of the budget be set aside to support the cost of a 
replacement gate. 
 
The Group had previously discussed a bid to Boston Big Local (BBL) for a grant of 
£19,000 towards a Pirate Ship to be located at the Woodville Road Play Area.  BBL had 
since provisionally approved a grant, subject to Board approval, which would be known 
in April 2019.  The Working Group proposed the matching of the remaining £15,095 
against the BBL grant for provision of a Pirate Ship subject to further quotes being 
sought from Play Equipment Providers. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



Future budgets would include increased costs associated to the maintenance of any 
new play equipment, once any warranty periods ended.  Additional inspection costs 
would be incorporated in future year’s budgets from the 2019/20 financial year onwards. 
 
Any improvements agreed by BTAC would be subject to Contract Procurement 
Regulations and any expenditure over £10,000 would be subject to Cabinet approval. 
Once approval was granted, works would be issued to a relevant supplier so they could 
be delivered as soon as practicable. 
 
The Chairman commended the hard work of the Play & Physical Activity Officer, who 
had secured various grants of around £70,000.   
 
During debate, it was remarked that the Committee’s annual coach trip showed that 
improvements had been much needed, that much had been achieved already, and that 
the current proposals would result if further significant improvements.  The Play & 
Physical Activity Officer and Chairman of the Working Group were commended.  The 
Play & Physical Activity Officer had obtained good discounts and secured a 
considerable amount of funding.  The match-funding with Big Boston Local (BBL) was 
particularly pleasing.  The provision of play and fitness equipment would certainly help 
those on low incomes in particular and they improved the appearance of the town.    
 
Members welcomed the investment at all the play areas.  However, the question of 
maintenance was raised and the timescales involved, as improvements would be 
needed before the summer holidays.   
 
The Head of Place and Space referred the Committee to the increase in revenue costs 
of £2,000 and advised Members that, should they wish to use the £40,000 funding as 
set out in the report, then this would be subject to Cabinet approval in the new Municipal 
Year.  The aim was for the equipment to be in place as soon as possible; if the 
recommendation was put to Cabinet in June then it would be ready to be put in place 
within the summer programme.  The Pirate Ship would be subject to another 
procurement process to ensure value for money was achieved.   
 
The Chairman of the Open Spaces Working Group gave credit to the Play & Physical 
Activity Officer for going “above and beyond” in her work.   
 
There was discussion regarding older children littering in the Burgess Pitt play area and 
a report that equipment had been installed and in use at Broadfield Lane play area 
under a Section 106 Agreement.   
 

Action: PP 
Consider signage at Burgess Pitt play area to raise awareness of CCTV being in 
operation in order to deter littering. 

 
  

Page 10



In conclusion, following consideration of the potential improvements identified in the 
report and inspection and ongoing maintenance costs it was: 
 
RESOLVED that it be recommended to Cabinet to use the £40,000 funding 
allocated to support open space improvements as follows: 
1. £24,950 for play area equipment in Shelton’s Field, St John’s Park and Central 

Park;  
2. £15,050 to match a Boston Big Local grant for provision of a Pirate Ship on 

Woodville Road Play Area subject to quotes. 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO:  CABINET 

DATE: 5 JUNE 2019 

SUBJECT: QUARTER 4 REPORT –  
PERFORMANCE, RISK AND FINANCE 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR SPENCER – FINANCE 

REPORT AUTHOR: HEAD OF CORPORATE SERVICES / CHIEF FINANCE 
OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 
This is the quarterly report covering performance, risk and finance monitoring 
information for Quarter 4 of 2018/19 (April 2018 to March 2019). 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
1. To note the quarterly monitoring information for Q4. 

2. To agree the specific finance recommendations, summarised below: 

 F1: To approve the reserve movements as detailed in Table 6 

 F2: To approve the updated capital programme as detailed in Table 10 

 F3: To write-off the irrecoverable Sundry Debt in the sum of £5,850 

 F4: To approve the supplementary estimates in respect of High Street 
Community Clean Up, Local Authorities Parks Improving Funding, Rough 
Sleepers Initiative, Controlling Migration Fund and Rapid Rehousing Pathway, 
as detailed in table 14 

 F5: To approve the exemption in respect of the rough sleepers grant awards, 
namely the Rough Sleepers Initiative, the Controlling Migration Fund and the 
Rapid Rehousing Pathway 

 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
Members are accountable for the delivery of the Council’s priorities and this 
monitoring information should be used as a tool to report on progress and highlight 
any key challenges forecast 
 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
Alternative reporting arrangements 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



REPORT 
 

Performance (Appendix A) 

 
1. Areas of success / improvement 

 Planning applications (CP1) 

 Housing completions (CP2) 

 Empty properties (CP2) 

 Benefit and Council Tax Support processing times (CP2) 

 Broadly compliant food businesses (CP2) 

 Swim sessions at GMLC (CP2) 

 Car parking permit income vs budget (CP3) 

 Average time taken to respond to FOI/EIR requests (CP4) 

 Sickness absence (CP4) 

 % abandoned calls to switchboard (CP4) 
 
2. Areas of concern / watching brief 

 Improved housing standards (CP2) 

 Residual household waste per household (CP3) 

 % of fly tip reports responded to within 2 working days (CP3) 

 Market income (CP3) 

 Business rates collection (CP4) 
 
3. Other items of note 

 Contamination in domestic recycling (CP3) 

 % growth in commercial waste income and customers (CP3) 

 Complaints and compliments 
 

 

Risk (Appendix B) 

 
4. Update on risks in Quarter 4 

 
4.1 Each quarter we monitor our strategic risks – those risks which could impact 

most on the achievement of our corporate priorities as set out in the Corporate 
Plan (www.boston.gov.uk/corporateplan) – Prosperity; People; Place; Public 
Service. 

 
4.2 There are no new strategic risks to report in Quarter 4. The Local Plan risk has 

been removed as the Plan has now been adopted. 
 
4.3 Summary of strategic risks (full details in Appendix B) 

Page 14

http://www.boston.gov.uk/corporateplan


 

Corporate 
Priority 

Risk name Risk owner Risk score Risk rating 
Management 

assurance 
(RAG) 

1: Prosperity 

Flood risk 
Michelle 
Sacks 

8 Medium Amber 

Growth and 
local economy 

Michelle 
Sacks 

9 Medium Green 

Local Plan 
Michelle 
Sacks 

6 Medium Amber 

2: People 

Housing Andy Fisher 12 High Red 

Welfare Paul Julian 4 Medium Green 

Health Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

3: Place Town Centre Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

4: Public 
Service 

Population 
change 

Andy Fisher 9 Medium Green 

Budget Paul Julian 12 High Amber 

Capacity 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

Transformation 
Programme 

Paul Julian 9 Medium Amber 

Brexit Paul Julian 9 Medium Green 

Overall 

Civil 
contingency 
risks 

Andy Fisher 8 Medium Green 

Compliance 
Michelle 
Sacks 

6 Medium Green 

Reputation 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

 

5. Plans for review for 2019/20 

 
5.1 The strategic risks for 2019/20 will be reviewed alongside the development of 

the next Corporate Plan. 
 
5.2 The operational risks for 2019/20 are currently being reviewed by service 

managers as part of service planning for 2019/20 and will be reported in Q1 of 
2019/20. 

 

Financial management (Appendix C) 

 
6. Finance headlines: 

 The National Picture (section 1) 

 Revenue budget (section 2): table 1 details spend for the year against 
budget by service area, table 2 by portfolio holder and table 3 by corporate 
priority. 

 Variations to budget (section 3) 

 Controlling Migration Fund (section 4, table 4) 

 Trading income (section 5; table 5) 

Page 15



 Reserves (section 6; table 6) – recommendation for Cabinet to approve the 
reserve movements as detailed in the table 

 Treasury management (section 7) 

 Capital (section 8; table 10) – recommendation for Cabinet to approve the 
updated capital programme as detailed in the table 

 Consultancy costs (section 9; table 11) 

 Debt collection (section 10; table 12) – recommendation for Cabinet to 
write-off irrecoverable Sundry Debt in the sum of £5,850 

 Supplementary estimates (section 11; table 14) – recommendation for 
Cabinet to approve the supplementary estimates as detailed in the table 

 Insurance (section 12; table 15) 

 Procurement exemptions (section 13) – recommendation for Cabinet to 
approve the exemption in respect of the rough sleepers grant awards, 
namely the Rough Sleepers Initiative, the Controlling Migration Fund and 
the Rapid Rehousing Pathway 

 Localisation of Business Rates and Council Tax Support Scheme (section 
14; table 16) 

 Other financial matters (section 15) 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Overall, performance in Quarter 4 of 2018/19 was in line with targets. 
 
Strategic and operational risks continue to be managed in accordance with the Risk 
Management Framework. 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are set out in the ‘Finance’ section of the report, with 
specific recommendations highlighted in the recommendations section at the 
beginning of this covering report 
 

 
 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Local Government Act 1999 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
The performance and risk implications are set out in the relevant sections of the 
report, with specific recommendations highlighted in the recommendations section at 
the beginning of this covering report 
 

 

Page 16



CONSULTATION 

Consultation has been undertaken with CMT. 

 

 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report:- 
 

APPENDIX A Q4 performance 

APPENDIX B Q4 risks 

APPENDIX C Q4 finance 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report 
 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Performance Q4 2018/19 – Appendix A 
 
Performance measures: directly within the Council’s control; used to monitor how our 
services are performing against set targets 
 
Corporate Priority 1: Prosperity 
 

CP1: performance measures 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2017/18 
– full year 

2018/19 
– full year 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

% of major planning applications determined within 
13 weeks 

L EP 73% 75%  83% 75%  

% minor planning applications decided within 8 
weeks 

L EP 71% 65%  71% 65%  

% of all other applications determined within 8 
weeks 

L EP 82% 80%  77% 80%  

Number of businesses visited to support business 
growth 

L EP 54 New 56 50  

Number of events attended to promote the Borough L EP 5 New 4 4  

 
Corporate Priority 2: People 
 

CP2: performance measures 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2017/18 
– full year 

2018/19 
– full year 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Housing completions H CC 394 390  429 310  

Number of affordable homes 
delivered (gross) 

H CC 106 75  171 170  

Number of non-local authority 
owned empty properties 
returned into occupation 

H CC 82 60  91 60  

Improved Housing Standards H CC 94 100  51 200  

Comment: Target linked to Controlling Migration Fund (CMF) project target (200 for Q4) Proactive 
work ongoing however results take time to feed through following informal advice or notice. In 
addition two of the new Housing Standards Officers left the authority in Oct/Nov and recruitment 
was undertaken with new Consultant Housing Standards Officers starting in Jan 19. However one 
of these also moved on and further recruitment was undertaken. Additionally one of the employed 
housing standards officers went off long term due to an accident.   

Benefit processing time – new 
claims (days) 

F CC 3.71 10  3.80 10  

Benefit processing time – 
change in circumstances 

F CC 7.50 14  6.88 14  

Council Tax Support F CC 5.47 10  7.76 10  

Page 19



 

 

CP2: performance measures 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2017/18 
– full year 

2018/19 
– full year 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

processing – new claims 

Council Tax Support 
processing time – change in 
circumstances 

F CC 11.65 14  6.89 14  

% of broadly compliant food 
businesses 

E CC 98.30% 95%  98.89% 95%  

% of food safety inspections 
completed against those 
required by the Food Law 
Code of Practice 

E CC 100% 100%  100% 100%  

Comment: Local Authority Enforcement Monitoring System (LAEMS) Data for 2018/19. 98.89% of 
premises were broadly compliant; 98.11% including those not yet rated. 401 interventions were 
carried out – 99.50% of those due. 100% of interventions were carried out at newly registered 
businesses. 

Swim sessions at GMLC TA EP 162,963 155,000  167,417 165,000  

 

Corporate Priority 3: Place 
 

CP3: performance 
measures 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2017/18 
– full year 

2018/19 
– full year 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Household waste reused, 
recycled, composted 

E EP 41.52% 44.09%  41.07% 41.52%  

Residual household 
waste per household 

E EP 540kg 525kg  553kg 540kg  

Comment: This reflects the regional and national trend and is being addressed by the Lincolnshire 
Waste Partnership (LWP) who are developing the Waste Strategy for Lincolnshire. 

% of fly tip reports 
responded to within 2 
working days 

E EP 84.77% New 72% 85%  

Comment:  12% increase in the number of fly tips reported in Q4 compared to Q3. 10.66% of fly 
tips were collected on the same day that they were reported in Q4 (compared to 20.63% in Q3) 

Car parking income 
against monthly profile* 

TC EP £828,905 £900,000  £867,417 £860,000  

Car Parking permit 
income vs budget 

TC EP £80,711 £69,220  £100,482 £87,350  

Market Income TC EP £167,035 £180,000  £144,450 £180,000  

Comment: A review of the Market will be completed within the new financial year. 

                                                
*
 This includes income from tickets purchased via the MiPermit app 

Page 20



 

 

 

Corporate Priority 4: Public Service 
 

CP4: performance measures 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2017/18 
– full year 

2018/19 
– full year 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Business Rates collection (% collected) F CC 98.19% 98%  96.19% 98.00%  

Comment: Target not met due to a large local business going into administration 

Council Tax collection (% collected) F CC 96.12% 96%  96.01% 96.00%  

Average time taken to respond to 
FOI/EIR requests (working days) 

R CC 7 20  8 20  

Average time taken to respond to Subject 
Access requests (calendar days) 

R CC 41 40  
1 

month 
1 

month 
 

Sickness absence – overall (days) L CC 7.5 7.0  6.3 7.0  

Sickness absence – long term L CC 5.5 5.0  3.8 5.0  

Sickness absence – short term L CC 2.0 2.0  2.4 2.0  

Switchboard - % of abandoned calls F CC 8% 10%  6% 10%  

Switchboard – average waiting time (in 
seconds) 

F CC 48 45  42 45  

 

Performance key 
: Performance better than target; : Performance on target; : Performance worse than target 
 

Portfolio key 
E: Environmental Services; F: Finance; H: Housing and Communities; L: Leader; R: Regulatory; 
TA: Tourism, Arts, Culture & Heritage; TC: Town Centre 
 

Scrutiny key 
CC: Corporate and Community Committee; EP: Environment and Performance Committee 

 
  

Page 21



 

 

Trend measures: provide context and not directly within the Council’s control; used to 
inform decision making and policy. 
 

Corporate Priority 1: Prosperity 
 

 
 
 

 

 -  

 5.000  

 10.000  

 15.000  

 20.000  

 25.000  

 30.000  

17/18-
Q1 

17/18-
Q2 

17/18-
Q3 

17/18-
Q4 

18/19-
Q1 

18/19-
Q2 

18/19-
Q3 

18/19-
Q4 

Gross (£m) 24.567  24.129  24.322  24.261  25.532  25.363  25.450  25.402  

Net (£m) 20.068  19.427  19.872  19.730  20.637  20.308  20.316  20.244  

Collectable business rates 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 

Major 86% 100% 63% 56% 64% 79% 84% 83% 

Target 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Major planning applications determined on time 

Page 22



 

 

 
 

 
 
The Government tracks planning performance over a cumulative 2-year period. Boston’s 
performance is currently at 79% for majors (against a minimum standard of 60%) and 76% for 
minors and others (against a minimum standard of 70%). 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 

Minor 76% 85% 71% 54% 45% 67% 68% 71% 

Target 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Minor planning applications determined on time 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 

Other 97% 93% 84% 60% 62% 76% 78% 77% 

Target 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Other planning applications determined on time 

Page 23



 

 

 
 

 

Corporate Priority 2: People 
 

 
 

Trend measures 

2017/18 2018/19 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

160 

180 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 

Number 147 152 171 160 145 175 142 116 

Number of registered planning applications 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

400 

450 

500 

17/18: 
Q1 

17/18: 
Q2 

17/18: 
Q3 

17/18: 
Q4 

18/19: 
Q1 

18/19: 
Q2 

18/19: 
Q3 

18/19: 
Q4 

New apps 353 433 320 453 379 356 320 366 

New housing register applications 

Page 24



 

 

Trend measures 

2017/18 2018/19 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Number of taxi drivers suspended/revoked 3 38 39 39 0 0 0 1 

Number of vehicles suspended/revoked 8 18 23 29 5 10 11 24 

Comment: 13 vehicles suspended mostly due to Road Traffic Accidents and failure to provide 6 
month MOT on time. 

Number of taxi driver/vehicle hearings 1 1 3 8 3 7 8 9 

Number of premises licences revoked 0 1 5 2 0 1 2 2 

Number of premises licence hearings 1 4 4 6 2 5 7 11 

Comment: 4 hearings in Q4: 1 Review (Licence revoked). 1 application (refused). 1 variation 
(Granted with modifications) 1 Transfer of Licence and Variation of DPS (Refused). 

 

Corporate Priority 3: Place 
 

 
 
We finished third in the league overall in terms of 12 month average contamination rate at 31% 
when compared to all districts. Only ELDC (30%) and NKDC (30%) have achieved a better annual 
average for 18/19. All other districts finished at 32%. 
 

25% for March was our best performance all year and the lowest of all districts in March. In fact 
lower than 25% has only been achieved by two councils (ELDC and NKDC) once this year. 
 
Commercial waste: 
 

Trend measures 2018/19 

% growth in income in commercial waste service compared to year end 2017/18 +20% 

Number of commercial waste customers compared to 2017/18 baseline +18% 
 

0% 

5% 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

35% 

40% 

Apr 
18 

May 
18 

Jun 
18 

Jul 18 Aug 
18 

Sep 
18 

Oct 
18 

Nov 
18 

Dec 
18 

Jan 19 Feb 
19 

Mar 
19 

BBC 31% 33% 33% 30% 29% 31% 33% 36% 36% 28% 29% 25% 

Lincs average 31% 31% 32% 30% 27% 30% 34% 34% 34% 30% 30% 30% 

Contamination in Domestic Recycling 

Page 25



 

 

 
 

 
 

Breakdown of ‘other household’ items: 

 Furniture: 38 

 Mattresses: 37 

 Wood: 10 

 Textiles: 5 

 Toys: 4 

 Garden items: 0 
 

This does not correspond exactly to the number of ‘other household’ items overall because there 
may be multiple types of items in one ‘other household’ incident. 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

400 

450 

15/16: Q4 16/17: Q4 17/18: Q4 18/19: Q4 

Number 186 341 290 401 

Number of fly tip incidents in Q4 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

160 

Fly tip incidents by type 

17/18-Q4 18/19-Q4 

Page 26



 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

Single Item Car Boot Small Van Transit 
Van 

Tipper Significant 

2017/18_Q4 20 28 77 100 24 3 

2018/19_Q4 81 130 121 26 9 1 

Fly tip incidents by volume 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

17/18: 
Q1 

17/18: 
Q2 

17/18: 
Q3 

17/18: 
Q4 

18/19: 
Q1 

18/19: 
Q2 

18/19: 
Q3 

18/19: 
Q4 

FPNs 243 188 152 248 105 198 119 174 

Fixed Penalty Notices issued 

Page 27



 

 

 
 
Lower quarter 4 visitor numbers is consistent with historic user trend during this period 
 

 
 
  

0 

1000 

2000 

3000 

4000 

5000 

6000 

Q1 17/18 Q2 17/18 Q3 17/18 Q4 17/18 Q1 18/19 Q2 18/19 Q3 18/19 Q4 18/19 

Count 4881 5152 4563 3274 4766 4407 4864 3002 

Guildhall Door Count 

£0.00  

£20,000.00  

£40,000.00  

£60,000.00  

£80,000.00  

£100,000.00  

£120,000.00  

£140,000.00  

£160,000.00  

£180,000.00  

A
rt

ill
er

y 
R

o
w

 

B
ar

ga
te

 G
re

en
 

B
o

to
lp

h
 S

tr
ee

t 

B
u

o
y 

Ya
rd

 

C
at

tl
e 

M
ar

ke
t 

C
u

st
o

m
 H

o
u

se
 Q

u
ay

 

D
o

u
gh

ty
 Q

u
ay

 

G
eo

rg
e 

St
re

et
 

M
ar

ke
t 

P
la

ce
 

M
au

d
 S

tr
ee

t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 B
u

ild
in

gs
 

P
u

m
p

 S
q

u
ar

e 
 

So
u

th
 S

q
u

ar
e

 

Sp
ay

n
e 

R
o

ad
  

St
an

ila
n

d
 

St
at

io
n

 A
p

p
ro

ac
h

 

St
 G

eo
rg

e'
s 

R
o

ad
 

Tu
n

n
ar

d
 S

tr
ee

t 

V
ic

to
ri

a 
P

la
ce

 

W
es

t 
En

d
  

W
id

e 
B

ar
ga

te
  

Income by car park 

17/18 18/19 

Page 28



 

 

Car Park  2017/18 2018/19 Difference 

Artillery Row £12,090.05 £11,387.82 -£702.23 

Bargate Green £103,959.15 £106,638.09 £2,678.94 

Botolph Street £15,751.56 £15,054.80 -£696.76 

Buoy Yard £6,419.46 £8,091.93 £1,672.47 

Cattle Market £164,750.05 £174,610.66 £9,860.61 

Custom House Quay £57,414.33 £53,012.35 -£4,401.98 

Doughty Quay £28,102.26 £28,980.73 £878.47 

George Street £3,877.75 £4,647.50 £769.75 

Market Place £77,229.52 £77,409.40 £179.88 

Maud Street £23,564.66 £22,451.25 -£1,113.41 

Municipal Buildings £1,750.95 £2,118.32 £367.37 

Pump Square  £32,806.20 £46,407.25 £13,601.05 

South Square £11,489.40 £18,295.37 £6,805.97 

Spayne Road  £9,505.07 £9,214.93 -£290.14 

Staniland £46,945.42 £33,921.12 -£13,024.30 

Station Approach £16,104.84 £12,083.58 -£4,021.26 

St George's Road £77,298.47 £96,301.76 £19,003.29 

Tunnard Street £29,609.72 £38,155.17 £8,545.45 

Victoria Place £10,796.08 £11,674.12 £878.04 

West End  £78,900.79 £72,784.92 -£6,115.87 

Wide Bargate  £20,539.15 £24,176.05 £3,636.90 

Total  £828,904.88 £867,417.12 £38,512.24 

 

 
 

0 

500 

1000 

1500 

2000 

2500 

17/18: 
Q1 

17/18: 
Q2 

17/18: 
Q3 

17/18: 
Q4 

18/19: 
Q1 

18/19: 
Q2 

18/19: 
Q3 

18/19: 
Q4 

Average footfall 1925 2008 2121 1680 1968 1930 1957 1754 

Average pedestrian footfall 

Page 29



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

0 

100 

200 

300 

400 

500 

600 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Q4 543 435 566 303 346 260 

Number of CCTV directed/assisted arrests 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Q4 233 247 320 199 229 208 

Number of CCTV evidential packages 

Page 30



 

 

 
 

Trend measures 
2017/18 2018/19 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Number of Stage 1 Antisocial Behaviour (ASB) letters 14 11 21 26 19 15 22 25 

Number of Stage 2 Antisocial Behaviour (ASB) letters 7 7 5 7 3 6 1 6 

Number of Acceptable Behaviour Agreements (ABAs) 1 5 6 0 1 0 0 0 

Number of injunctions 0 1 1 1 3 0 0 0 

Number of Community Protection Notice Warnings 
issued 

0 0 0 0 0 5 1 2 

Number of Community Protection Notices (CPN) relating 
to the Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) 

1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 

 

Corporate Priority 4: Public Service 

 

0 

200 

400 

600 

800 

1000 

1200 

1400 

1600 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Q4 1109 1400 1483 896 985 628 

Number of CCTV incidents recorded 

0 

1000 

2000 

3000 

4000 

5000 

6000 

7000 

8000 

9000 

17/18: 
Q1 

17/18: 
Q2 

17/18: 
Q3 

17/18: 
Q4 

18/19: 
Q1 

18/19: 
Q2 

18/19: 
Q3 

18/19:Q4 

Number 6384 5923 7696 8097 7527 6790 8735 8146 

Number of online payments 

Page 31



 

 

Q4 complaints and compliments 
 

Complaint Service area Justified? Outcome 

Complaint about 
Council Tax 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

Partly 

Complex circumstances. Account holder 
has not provided the relevant evidence. 
Breakdown provided and 28 days given to 
provide the evidence required. 

Complaint about 
Council Tax 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

Partly 
Complex billing over multiple properties 
but could have been better explained 

Complaint regarding 
credit control and their 
process for recovering 
an overpayment in 
housing benefit 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

Partly 

Customer sent an invoice and a reminder 
prior to us contacting employer. Letter to 
employer was to confirm customer worked 
for them and did not instruct them to make 
deductions from customer’s salary. This is 
in accordance with our procedures. 
Customer given a verbal explanation and 
an arrangement is in place. If customer 
keeps the arrangement, we have no 
course to make future contact with 
employer. 

Complaint about 
council tax debt and 
recovery agents 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

Partly 
The customer's payment arrangements 
were unclear. This has now been 
resolved. 

Complaint about 
Council Tax 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

No 
No evidence that the complainant had 
advised of change in circumstances. New 
payment arrangements have been made 

Complaint about 
potential data 
protection breach in 
Council Tax 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

No 
No data breach. Legal process for Council 
Tax followed. 

Complaint about use 
of a photograph in a 
planning matter 

Corporate 
Director 

Partly 

Customer assured that we are considering 
the application in accordance with 
legislation and guidance. Information not 
directly relevant to the application will be 
omitted from the planning portal on the 
website 

Complaint about 
planning application 
B/18/0405 

Corporate 
Director 

No 
Consultation was more comprehensive 
than national guidelines and in line with 
local guidelines. 

Complaint about 
planning application 
B/18/0472 

Corporate 
Director 

No 

Case handled appropriately although the 
wording could have been slightly clearer. 
Meeting offered to discuss the way 
forward. 

Complaint about 
planning application 
B/18/0502 

Corporate 
Director 

No 
No evidence to support complaint. 
Deadline extended to allow more time for 
consultation. 

Complaint about a 
member of staff 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

Partly 

No evidence to support accusations and 
the majority of the complaint was not 
upheld. Further action had not been taken 
as promised. This will be taken forward by 
a senior officer. 

Complaint about delay 
in response to an FOI 
request 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

No 

We have a finite amount of resource to 
respond to all of the information requests 
that we receive and only 1% are beyond 
the 20 working day deadline. Of the 11 
requests to date from this requester, the 

Page 32



 

 

Complaint Service area Justified? Outcome 

average time taken is 16 days. This 
particular request was time-consuming 
and we responded in as timely a manner 
as we could. We will continue to make 
every effort to meet the 20 working day 
deadline for all of the requests we receive 
and we will inform requesters when we 
cannot do so. 

Complaint about 
positioning of bin 

Head of 
Environmental 
Operations 

No 
Bin men returned bin correctly; no 
adverse impact on customer 

Complaint about state 
of GMLC 

Head of Place Yes Capital works planned 

Complaint about Civil 
Enforcement Officer 
and parking charge 
notice; also lack of 
toilets in the town 
centre 

Head of Place No 

No evidence of wrongdoing on the part of 
the officer or the Council. The car was 
parked outside of the lines not parked 
beyond its time. Information provided 
about town centre toilets to help to avoid 
similar issues in future. 

Complaint about 
process for naming a 
property 

Head of Place No 
Customer advised to choose a more 
suitable house name. If they cannot fee 
will be refunded. 

Complaint about 
BTAC 

Head of Place No 
Meeting procedure was followed by the 
Chair 

Complaint about 
BTAC report 

Head of Place No 

No evidence that the report should have 
been tabled in advance of the meeting. No 
evidence that the officer was ill prepared. 
No evidence that the matter was not taken 
seriously 

Presented as 
homeless, unhappy 
with being repeatedly 
told would be seen but 
wasn't. 

Head of 
Regulatory 
Services 

No 
Misunderstanding about when he would 
be seen. An appointment was made and 
his enquiries have been resolved. 

Complaint about 
homeless people 
sleeping near her 
home and intimidating 
her and her young 
daughter with no 
action by the 
authorities 

Head of 
Regulatory 
Services 

No 

Not the direct responsibility of BBC. 
However, the Housing Manager has 
liaised with partner organisations to 
resolve the issue and to review the 
housing band 

Complaint about 
housing 

Head of 
Regulatory 
Services 

No 

No evidence of discrimination - 
clarification provided re housing and 
contact details for relevant officer to speak 
to directly 

 
  

Page 33



 

 

Ombudsman complaints 
 

Complaint Service area Outcome 

Complaint about a 
County Court 
Judgement relating to 
Council Tax 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

The Ombudsman will not investigate as County Court 
Judgements (CCJs) are outside of their jurisdiction 

Complaint about 
planning process for 
application B/18/0502 

Corporate 
Director 

The Ombudsman will not investigate Mr X’s complaint 
about the Council’s handling of a planning application. 
The Council has refused the application and the issue 
does not therefore cause him significant injustice 

Complaint about 
refusal to accept a 
house name change 

Head of Place 

The Ombudsman will not investigate this complaint 
about the Council’s rejection of house names suggested 
by the complainant. It is unlikely the Ombudsman would 
find evidence of fault by the Council. 

Complaint relating to 
housing needs 

Head of 
Regulatory 
Services 

No fault in how the Council considered Mr Y’s housing 
application. 

Follow up complaint 
relating to housing 
needs 

Head of 
Regulatory 
Services 

The complainant did not respond to the Ombudsman so 
the case has been closed 

 
Compliments 
 

Compliment Service area 

Well done for the clean and responsive website that has replaced the old 
clunky out of date website 

Communications 
and IT 

Thank you so much to Sue Ransome and Boston Council Customer Service 
for your prompt response. Thanks again for your speedy intervention, it 
helped and is massively appreciated. 

Customer 
Services 

May I take this opportunity to thank everyone at Boston Borough, particularly 
{member of staff} who was so prompt and courteous in her responses 
regarding fly tipping issues. Thanks also to the Fly Swat Team themselves.  

Environmental 
Enforcement 

X called back to say that the area in question has been cleared/litter picked 
and so wanted to say thank you very much for whomever sorted 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Thanks, I can confirm it has all been collected.  Once again thank you to the 
fly swat lads for a good job done. 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Please thank the whole team from both myself and Freiston Parish Council 
for an excellent job. 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Impressed how quickly fly tipping is dealt with when mentioned on social 
media. Thank you Boston Borough Council. 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Thankyou for the quick service. Road sweepers are here and they are doing 
a fantastic job. If only people would keep it clean. Thank you again.  

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Re brown bin: Thank you both for getting on so promptly with the issue that I 
raised with you barely an hour ago. I’m glad it looks as though it is going to 
be resolved fairly easily. 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Called to thank the enforcement team for putting up a sign regarding dog 
fouling on Wyberton West Road 

Environmental 
Enforcement 

Regarding speaking to residents concerning smoke pollution: Thank you for 
all that you have done today for the residents of both West Ward and 
Staniland Ward. Your very prompt response will help me convince residents 
that our council always acts quickly to deal with issues when they arise.  This 
is a very good result for the council, for both officers and councillors, by 
illustrating that councillors and officers work together closely for the welfare 
and best interests of everyone. 

Environmental 
Health 

Had a call from people about stair lift, sending out paperwork so they can get Housing 

Page 34



 

 

Compliment Service area 

started on it, you don't know how good that makes me feel knowing that I can 
live here for the rest of my days. Fantastic news, don't know how to thank you 
but I do so much, if I can help you in anyway with anything please don't 
hesitate to ask, you are a star thank you so much 

Can I place on record my thanks and those of my client for the speedy action 
by {planning officer} on the planning application. 

Planning 

Thank you for the street sign you arranged to go on Witham Bank West at the 
top of the steps from Castle Street etc. A couple of delivery drivers have even 
expressed their gratitude at not having to walk one way and then the other 
since it has been installed. Thank you for arranging this and making two 
residents very happy. 

Property 
Services 

I am writing to thank you for your recent help with my enquiry regarding land 
purchased from BBC….Thank you again for your kind assistance and time. It 
was greatly appreciated. 

Property 
Services 

A member of the public called to congratulate bin men on laying down 
emptied blue bins to make sure don't blow away in high winds. 

Refuse 

Very pleased with bin service. BBC are doing great job. Refuse 

Thank you to the bin men for recollecting missed bin Refuse 

Lost brown bin stickers. Called on Monday and received replacement stickers 
today. Wanted to say thanks for speedy service. Very pleased. 

Refuse 

Received sticker for garden waste 2 days after making payment Refuse 

Compliments to the cleansing team who recently cleaned up the Station Path 
footway.  

Street cleaning 

Thank you from Holland Fen with Brothertoft parish council for your recent 
cleaning of Langrick bridge with the street cleaner. It looks great! 

Street cleaning 

Street cleaning – Manor Gardens this morning – rang to say what a good job 
they had done and to thank the crew 

Street cleaning 

 
RIPA 
 
The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) regulates the powers of public bodies to 
carry out surveillance and investigation. There were no RIPA applications in Q4. 
 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

 
 

Risk Q4 2018/19 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

1
 

Flood risk 

The risk of 
flooding may 
adversely 
impact on the 
Council's ability 
to achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Strategic Flood 
Risk Assessment; 
Lincolnshire 
Flood Risk 
Strategy; 
working closely 
with the 
Environment 
Agency; Local 
Plan; plans for 
the Boston 
Barrier (which 
will reduce risk 
of tidal flooding 
from 2% to 
0.3%); 
Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
manage flood 
risk and its 
impact; the risk 
score will only 
reduce when 
the Boston 
Barrier is in 
place 

N/A N/A Amber 

C
P

1
 

Growth and 
local economy 

Growth is vital 
to the future 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Proactive 
approach to 
growth; 
economic 
development 
plan 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
Treat 

Implementation 
of the Economic 
Development 
Plan 

Aim to 
reduce the 
likelihood of 
lack of 
growth to 
possible due 
to ED Plan 

Green 

C
P

1
 

Local Plan 

Lack of delivery 
on the Local 
Plan will have 
an impact on 
the ability of 

MS 

Local Plan 
delivery plan; 
plans for a local 
plan board to 
oversee actions 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work on 
delivering the 
Local Plan on 

Adoption of the 
Local Plan 

N/A Amber 

P
age 37



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

post-adoption schedule 

C
P

2
 

Housing 

Lack of housing 
delivery, across 
tenures that 
means that the 
range of 
housing needs 
that exist 
within the 
Borough 
cannot be met. 
 
A lack of 
delivery will 
have 
overarching 
negative 
impacts that 
affect the 
economy, 
business 
confidence and 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 

AF 

Local Plan. 
Delivery of 
Housing Strategy 
Actions. 
Developing 
Transformation 
Programme to 
focus on wider 
housing enabling 
and housing 
delivery. 
 

4 
Almost 
certain 

3 
Major 
impact 

12 
High risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
drive the 
delivery of new 
Housing  

Monitoring of 
total housing 
delivery.  
Monitoring of 
affordable 
housing 
delivery. 

N/A Red 

P
age 38



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

people and 
meet the wider 
housing needs 
of the 
community;  

C
P

2
 

Welfare 

There is a risk 
that ‘universal 
support – 
delivered 
locally’ will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people 

PJ 

'Universal 
support - 
delivered locally' 
project work 
underway with 
partners to 
ensure support 
and training is in 
place for staff 
and local people 

2 
Possible 

2 
Minor 
impact 

4 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work on the 
'universal 
support - 
delivered 
locally' project 
with partners 

Monitor impact 
of universal 
credit 

N/A Green 

P
age 39



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

2
 

Health 

There is a risk 
that health 
issues will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect people; 
long term 
health issues, 
deprivation, 
local 
perceptions, 
apathy, 
unsustainable 
health services 

PP 
Partnership 
working with 
health 

3 
Probable 

2 
Minor 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
deliver the 
Boston Health 
& Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Partnership 
work on the 
Boston Health & 
Wellbeing 
Strategy and 
Action Plan 

N/A Green 

C
P

3
 

Town centre 

The future 
sustainability 
of the town 
centre in terms 
of retail, 
housing and 
car parking will 
have an impact 
on the ability 
of the Council 
to achieve its 
corporate 
prosperity and 
place priority 

PP 

Prosperous 
Boston and 
Markets task and 
finish groups 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 
Treat Markets review N/A Green 

P
age 40



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 Population 

change 

There is a risk 
that population 
change will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priorities of 
people & 
prosperity 

AF 

Inclusive Boston 
projects; 
Controlling 
Migration Fund 

3 Probable 
3 

Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
 Treat 

 Inclusive Boston 
projects – 
progress 
monitored in 
quarterly 
reporting 

N/A Green 

C
P

4
 

Budget 

There is a risk 
around the 
long term 
balancing of 
the budget 
with economic 
and funding 
uncertainty 
impacting on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of reserves; 
continued close 
monitoring; 
refresh of 
transformation 
programme; 
maintenance of 
the value list 

3 
Probable 

4 
Critical 
impact 

12 
High risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have a robust 
budget setting 
and MTFP 
process in 
place; continue 
to drive the 
delivery of the 
refreshed 
transformation 
programme; be 
less risk averse 
when making 
decisions about 
transformation 

Delivery of 
MTFP; quarterly 
reporting; 
implementation 
of the 
transformation 
programme 

N/A Amber 

P
age 41



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 

Capacity 

There is a risk 
that capacity 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

KN 

Recruitment and 
retention project 
completed; 
succession 
planning 
ongoing; HR 
policies and 
procedures; 
good 
management 
practice; 
member training 
and 
development; 
there is capacity 
in priority areas 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
train and 
develop staff 
and members 
and maximise 
resources by 
prioritising and 
shared services 

Workforce 
planning; 
succession 
planning 

N/A Green 

C
P

4
 

Transformation 
Programme 

There is a risk 
that the next 
phase of the 
transformation 
programme 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
deliver public 
service 

PJ 

Transformation 
Programme; 
project 
management 
methodology; 
governance in 
place via 
Transformation 
Board and 
quarterly 
reporting 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
drive the 
delivery of the 
transformation 
programme 

Delivery of the 
transformation 
programme 

N/A Amber 

C
P

4
 

Brexit 

The outcome 
of the 
referendum 
has resulted in 
economic 
uncertainty 
and there may 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of reserves; 
continued close 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have robust 
financial plans 
and monitoring 
in place 
pending more 

Quarterly 
financial 
reporting 

N/A Green 

P
age 42



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

be other 
changes 
around 
migration, the 
local 
workforce, and 
the legal 
framework in 
which we 
operate that 
are also 
uncertain at 
this time 

monitoring clarity 

O
ve

ra
ll Civil 

contingency 
risks 

There are 
community 
risks which will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

AF 

Community Risk 
Register 
monitored by 
the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum 
(LRF) 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with the 
LRF 

Working in 
partnership with 
the Lincolnshire 
Resilience 
Forum 

N/A Green 

P
age 43



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Compliance 

There is a risk 
that non-
compliance 
with legal 
requirements / 
governance / 
internal 
controls will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

MS 

Internal controls, 
policies and 
procedures in 
place; annual 
governance 
statement; 
internal audit; 
safeguarding 
policy and 
procedures; 
ongoing work to 
improve contract 
management 
and to update 
the contract 
register; 
Member training 
programme and 
corporate 
training 
programme in 
place; revised 
scheme of 
delegation; 
effective 
complaints 
management 
process 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
ensure 
compliance 
with legal 
requirements, 
governance 
and internal 
controls 

Internal audit 
reporting; 
Member Code 
of Conduct to be 
finalised and 
adopted 

N/A Green 

P
age 44



Appendix B 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Reputation 

There is a 
reputational 
risk to the 
Council which 
could impact 
on the ability 
of the Council 
to operate 
effectively 

KN 

Internal and 
external 
communication, 
press releases, 
bulletins, 
website, social 
media; policy, 
protocol and 
training for 
speaking to the 
press 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
communicate 
effectively and 
work with the 
press to 
portray the 
Council 
accurately 

Production of 
press releases, 
bulletins; use of 
social media; 
development of 
Visit Boston, 
Think Boston, 
My Boston 

N/A Green 

 

Guidance on scoring for information 
 
Risk appetite categories: 
 

 
 

P
age 45



Appendix B 

 
 

 
 

P
age 46



Finance Q4 2018/19 – appendix C 

 

1 The National Picture – key financial events during Quarter 4 2018/19 

 
The main issues affecting the Council in the fourth quarter of 2018/19 were: 

 Bank base rate remained at 0.75% (since 2 August 2018); and 

 Confirmation of the funding Settlement for 2019/20. 
 

2 Revenue Budget   

 
Table 1 – Net spend for the year against budget by Service Area: 
 

Service Area Net 
Budget 
2018/19 

 
 

£000 

Actual 
Outturn 

 
2018/19 

 
£000 

Variance 
(under 
spend)/ 

overspend 
 

£000 

Summary of Main Variances 

Chief Executive 297    289      (8) Economic Development 

Deputy Chief Executive  817 936 119 Planning income, Elections 
repayt, Members’ allowances 

Chief Finance Officer 1,071 657 (414) Verify Earnings & Pension 
funding, Custom Build Grant, 
UC Welfare Reform income 

Head of Corporate 
Services 

 
1,154 

 
1,202 

 
48 

Central Training & 
Recruitment 

Head of Regulatory 
Services 

 
1,573 

 
1,137 

 
(436) 

Flexible Homelessness 
support grant, Housing 
Enforcement, Land charges 

Head of Operations  1,158 1,215 57 Commercial Waste, Refuse / 
recycling & Vehicle Holding  

Head of Place and Space 187 480 293 Parking, Leisure income & 
Markets income 

BTAC    281 286 5  

Net Cost of Services 6,538 6,202 (336)  

Other Operating 
Expenditure: 

    

Drainage Board Precepts 1,884 1,884 -  

Direct Revenue 
Financing of Capital 

799 568 (231)  

Financing and 
Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 

    

Investment Income (120) (99) 21  

Income Receivable from 
Property Funds 

- (566) (566)  

Investment Properties (398) (366) 32  

Loan Interest 111 250 139 Treasury Management – s7 

Taxation & Non 
Specific Grant I&E: 

 
 

              
       

 
 

 

Council Tax  (4,201) (4,201) -  

Business Rates (3,360) (3,568) (208)  

Renewable Energy  (205) 40 245  

Non Ring Fenced 
Government Grant 

(1,725) (1,920) (195) 
 

 
 

Net Transfer to Reserves (677) (1,776) (1,099)  

Net Position - - -  

Page 47



Table 2 – Net spend for the year against budget by Portfolio Holder Area: 
 

Portfolio Holder Area Net 
Budget 
2018/19 

 
       
£000 

Actual 
Outturn 
2018/19 

 
       £000 

Variance 
(under 
spend)/ 

overspend 
          £000 

Summary of Main Variances 

Housing, Property & 
Community 

1,520 888 (632) Flexible Homelessness 
support grant, Housing 
Enforcement & BTAC 

Tourism, Arts, Culture & 
Heritage 

(118) 130 248 Leisure income 

Town Centre (732) 
 

(649) 
         

83  Parking, Markets income 

Environment 1,911 2,463 552 Commercial Waste, Refuse / 
recycling & Vehicle Holding 

Finance 1,924 1,469 (455) Verify Earnings & Pension 
funding, Custom Build Grant, 
UC Welfare Reform income 

Leader 1,220 
 

1,130 
 

(90) Planning income, Elections 
cost repayment, Members’ 
allowances 
 

Regulatory 532 485 (47) Licensing income 

BTAC 281 286 5  

Net Cost of Services 6,538 6,202 (336)  

Other Operating 
Expenditure: 

    

Drainage Board Precepts 1,884 
 

1,884 
 

- 
 

 

Direct Revenue Financing 
of Capital 

799 568 (231)  

Financing and 
Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 

    

Investment Income (120) (99) 21  

Income Receivable from 
Property Funds 

- (566) (566)  

Investment Properties (398)      (366)    32  

Loan Interest 111 250 139 Treasury Management – 
section 7 

Taxation & Non Specific 
Grant I&E: 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Council Tax (4,201) (4,201) -  

Business Rates (3,360) (3,568) (208)  

Renewable Energy (205) 40 245  

Non Ring Fenced 
Government Grant 

(1,725) (1,920) (195)  

Net Transfer to Reserves (677) (1,776) (1,099)  

     

Net Position - - -  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



Table 3 – Net spend for the year against budget by Corporate Priority: 
 

Priority Net 
Budget 
2018/19 
      £000 

Actual 
Outturn 
2018/19 

       £000 

Variance 
(under)/ 

overspend 
        £000 

Summary of Main Variances 

Prosperity 993 1,138 145 Planning income, Leisure 
income, Markets income & 
Economic Development 

People 992         390     (602) Homelessness support grant, 
Verify Earnings & Pension 
funding & Housing 
Enforcement 

Place 2,080 2,087 7 Commercial Waste, 
Refuse/Recycling & Vehicle 
Holding a/c 

Public Service 2,192 2,301 109 Custom Build Grant, 
Elections, Parking 

BTAC 281 286 5  

Net Cost of Services 6,538 6,202 (336)  

Other Operating 
Expenditure: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Drainage Board Precepts 1,884 1,884 -  

Direct Revenue 
Financing of Capital 

799 568 (231)  

Financing and 
Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 

    

Investment Income (120) (99) 21  

Income Receivable from 
Property Funds 

- (566) (566)  

Investment Properties (398) (366) 32  

Loan Interest 111 250 139 Treasury Management – 
section 7 

Taxation & Non Specific 
Grant I&E: 

    

Council Tax (4,201) (4,201) -  

Business Rates (3,360) (3,568) (208)  

Renewable Energy (205) 40 245  

Non Ring Fenced 
Government Grant 

(1,725) (1,920) (195)  

Net Transfer to Reserves (677) (1,776) (1,099)  

     

Net Position - -   

Page 49



3. Variations to budget 

 

 Budget 
2018/19 
£’000 

Variance 
2018/19 
£’000 

Outturn 
2018/19 
£’000 

Comments 

Total Service Expenditure and Drainage Board 
precepts 6,538   

 

Additional Costs     

 Members’ allowances  32  Increase in Members’ allowances  

    Housing Enforcement  34  HMO licensing software (funded from income) 

    Parking  70  Insurance and salary costs 

    Economic Development  28  Primary Engineer (funded from Tax Reserve) 

    Central Training & Recruitment  21  Recruitment costs 

    Commercial Waste  18  Refuse bin purchases 

    Leisure  53  Increased depreciation 

    Housing Benefit  24  Professional fees 

         

  280   

Reduced Costs     

    Elections  (12)   

    Other  (47)  Smaller variances 

  (59)   

     

Additional Income     

    Flexible Homelessness support grant  (40)  To be used to support Housing strategy. 

    Custom Build Grant  (19)  New burdens grant, to revenue in year 

    Verify Earnings & Pensions Funding   (30)  Funding to combat income related fraud  

    Refuse / Recycling (ELDC rounds)  (15)  Additional income – revised charges 

    Commercial Waste  (28)  Growing service. 

    Housing Enforcement  (87)  HMO Licensing (some to cover software) 

    Housing Enforcement  (59)  Empty Homes Funding. 

    Elections  (33)  Repayment General Election 17-18 costs 

    Parking  (26)  Additional income - Fees & Season ticket income 

    Licensing  (27)   

  (364)   

Reduced Income     

P
age 50



 Budget 
2018/19 
£’000 

Variance 
2018/19 
£’000 

Outturn 
2018/19 
£’000 

Comments 

     Leisure Income  37  Reduction in fees  

    Planning Income  48  £115k Income received c/f to 19-20 

    Market Income  37  Lower numbers of stallholders 

    Building Income  54  £12k Income received c/f to 19-20 

  176   

BTAC  (369)   

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE           6,202  

     

Other Operating Expenditure 2,683    

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital  (230)   

   2,453  

Financing & Investment I&E 111    

      Investment Income  (99)   

      Income Receivable from Property Funds  (566)   

      Investment Properties  (366)   

      Loan Interest  139   

       (892)   

   (781)  

Taxation & Non Specific Grant I&E (9,492)    

Business Rates  (207)   

Renewable Energy  244   

Specific Grants & NHB  (195)   

  (158)   

   (9,650)  

     

Net Transfer to Reserves   (1,776)  

Net Position   -  

P
age 51



4 Controlling Migration Fund 

 
This section has been introduced this year, to enable the spending of the £1.4m Controlling 
Migration Funding to be reported. 
 
Table 4 – Breakdown of Bid and Cumulative Spend to March 2019 
 

Spend Category Breakdown 
of Bid 

 
£’000 

Spend to 
31 Mar 
2019 
£000 

A Passion for People Project 80            42 
Community Leadership, Advice 
& Integration 

467 199 

Adding Value to Learning 114 72 
Doing what’s important for our 
community 

 
726 

 
233 

Total 1,387 546 

 

5 Trading Income  

 
The Council has a number of demand led budget areas which are reliant on receiving 
income for services provided. The Trading Income Outturn includes an accounting 
adjustment in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue Recognition, where revenue received in 
advance of any performance obligations has to be carried into 2019-20, or when the 
works will be carried out. This adjustment has had a total £127k reduction in income for 
2018-19, which has impacted on Planning £115k and Building Control £14k. Markets and 
Leisure were below budget. These areas are included in the following table: 
 
Table 5 – Trading Income Outturn: 
 

Income Area Budget 
 

£000 

 Outturn 
£000 

Variance 
 

£000 

Building Control  (184) (130) 54 
Planning  (465) (417) 48 
Land Charges  (99) (89) 10 
Licensing  (121) (148) (27) 
Garden Waste (400) (400) - 
Bereavement  (803) (807) (4) 
Commercial Waste (185) (213) (28) 
Parking  (987) (1,013) (26) 
Markets  (180) (143) 37 
Leisure (833) (796) 37 

Total (4,257) (4,156) 101 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



6  Reserves 

 
The following table shows the level of earmarked reserves held at the beginning of the 
year, movements in the year, and the position at 31 March 2019: 
 
Table 6 – Reserves 
 

Income Area Balance 
1 April 
2018 
£000 

Previously 
Approved 
Movement 

£000 

     Q4 
Movement 

 
£000 

Balance 
31 March 

2019 
£000 

Capital Funding  3,635 552 237 4,424 
Transformation Reserve 874 111 106 1,091 
Repairs and Renewals  714 1 2 717 
ICT Reserve 397 (30) 27 394 
Housing Reserve 1,153 (83) 108 1,178 
Controlling Migration  489 41 17 547 
Climate Change Reserve 150 (150) - - 
Insurance Reserve 260 30 - 290 
Community Cohesion 10 (10) - - 
Risk Mitigation Reserve - 249 26 275 
Tax Reserve (Business 
Rates/VAT) 

 
1,059 

 
368 

 
191 

 
1,618 

Total 8,741 1,079 714 10,534 

  
Notes 

 Capital Funding Reserve – the movement in reserve reflects changes to in-year 
financing requirements associated with the outturn capital spend as set out in 
section 8. The increase in reserve reflects the in-year underspend on the year’s 
Capital Programme. 

 Transformation Reserve – reflects changes in the timing of project spend and 
transfer of balance from the Climate Change Reserve. 

 Controlling Migration Reserve – the year-end position reflects the level of grant 
held to meet the cost of projects as shown in table 4. 

 Mitigation Reserve – as set out in the Capital & Treasury Strategy approved by 
Council on 30 April 2018, this new reserve will mitigate the risk to the revenue 
budget of possible future downturns in returns from the capital Property Funds. 
Additional investment returns from Property Funds less cost of borrowing set 
aside to protect against downward move in fund value. 
 

 
Recommendation:  
 
F1 To approve the reserve movements as detailed in Table 6.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



7 Treasury Management 

 
At 31 March 2019 the Council held £11.268m in cash investments (£18.735m at 31 December) 
and £20.627m in property funds (£20.742m at 31 December).  
 
The graph below shows that investment income earned to 31 March totals £554,700 comprising 
£97,200 from cash investments and £457,500 from property funds. A significant uplift in 
property fund income is being achieved following purchases in August, September and October, 
which total £19.989m 
 
The Council achieved an average rate of return for the quarter of 0.69% on its cash investments 
and an average 3.80% from its property funds. 
 
Graph 2 – Comparison of investment income budget to actual  
 

 
 
 
 
Table 7 - Property Funds – Financial Performance Summary (Initial £1m)  
 
     

Fund Sum 
Invested 

 
£000 

Fair Value 
31 March 

2018 
£000 

Fair Value 
31 March 

2019 
£000 

Cum. 
Increase 
in value 

£000 

Income 
received 
2018/19 

£000 

      

Black Rock  500 564 573 73 19 

Schroders 250 295 294 44 9 

Threadneedle 250 266 265 15 12 

TOTAL 1,000 1,125 1,132 132 40 

               
 
 
 
 

£536,000 

 £117,000  

 £554,711  

£0 

£100,000 

£200,000 

£300,000 

£400,000 

£500,000 

£600,000 

Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Month 

Actual v Budget Investment Income  

Projected Outturn 

Budget 

Actual 

In
te

re
st

 r
ec

ei
va

b
le

 

Page 54



Table 8 - Property Funds – Financial Performance Summary (new holdings: as at 31 
March 2019) 
 
 

Property  
Fund 

Settlement 
Date 

Capital 
Exp. 

 
 

£’000 

Fair Value 
at date of 
acq’n 

 
£’000 

Fair Value 
31 March 

2019 
 

£’000 

Cum. 
gain/(loss) 
31 March 

2019 
£’000 

Income 
received 
2018/19 

 
£’000 

BlackRock  28.09.18 4,000 4,000 4,008 8 69 

Schroders  07.09.18 4,000 4,020 4,050 50 72 

Threadneedle  31.08.18 2,989 2,901 2,880 (109) 79 

Threadneedle  28.09.18 500 483 479 (21) 11 

Threadneedle 31.10.18 500 483 479 (21) 9 

M&G  14.09.18 4,000 3,905 3,836 (164) 107 

AEW 31.10.18 4,000 3,777 3,763 (237) 70 

TOTAL  19,989 19,569 19,495 (494) 417 

 
The difference between purchase price (Capital Expenditure) and fair value at the date of 
acquisition reflects premiums payable or discount received against the Funds’ ‘Net Asset Value’ 
price at the settlement date. 
 
Having closely monitored long-term interest rate movements through the beginning of 
December, a £10m PWLB 50 year loan was taken out on 10 December at a rate of 2.54%, with 
a further £4m taken out on 13 December at 2.42% and a final £1.449m on 27 March 2019 at 
2.18%. Initially, short term borrowing provided the funding due to significant uncertainties about 
rate movements. 
 
Table 9 – Borrowing at 31 March 2019 
 
       

 
Amount  
£’000 

Duration 
 

Rate 

Long Term Borrowing    

    PWLB 10,000 50 years repayable 
10.12.2068 

2.54% 

    PWLB 4,000 50 years repayable 
13.12.2068 

2.42% 

    PWLB     1,449   
 

50 years repayable 
27.03.2069 

2.18% 

    State Street Bank     1,000 60 years repayable 
30.01.2051  

11.125% 

Total Borrowing 16,449   

 
 
Total interest payable including the existing long-term State Street £1m loan, short term 
borrowing and PWLB borrowing to 31 March was £250,000, against the year’s original budget of 
£111,000 (which did not include new borrowing costs).   
 
 

8  Capital  

 
The following table shows the Outturn position for 2018/19 against the latest approved capital 
programme for 2018/19 as reported to Cabinet on 3 April 2019:  
 
  

Page 55



Table 10 –Capital Programme for 2018/19 
 

Scheme Latest 
Approved 

Q3 
2018/19 
£’000 

Outturn 
 

2018/19 
        

£’000 

Slippage 
into 

2019/20 
 

£’000 

Scheme    
Commercial  Property Funds* 20,000 19,989  
Disabled Facilities Grants** 748 416 332 
Housing Strategy 200 200 - 
Homeless Hostels Refresh 15 - - 
Municipal Buildings Alterations  14 14 - 
Housing Scheme – Julian’s Yard/Ingelow 
Avenue 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Marginal Viability Fund*** - - - 
Boston Masterplan - Feasibility Study 47 20 27 
Resurfacing and Footpath Improvements - - - 
Estates Works - - - 
Industrial Units Refresh 10 - - 
Voluntary Centre Office Alterations 20 - - 
PSICA (Shop Front Scheme) 
          Haven Wharf 
          23 High Street, Boston 
          49 Market Place, Boston 
 

 
125 
184 
68 

 
125 
 150 

21 

 
- 

34 
47 

PRSA Investment - - - 
PRSA Upgrading of Existing/New Facilities 80 80 - 
Enhanced Play Equipment and Recreational 
Facilities – Garfits Lane 

 
73 

 
- 

 
73 

GMLC Investment in Gym and Spa Area 123 117 - 
Chancel Restoration 
St Botolphs Grant 

39 
50 

(104) 
50 

- 
- 

Information Technology Refresh 30 3 27 
Microsoft Licences 43 55 - 
Vehicle Replacement    
    Ford Transit Tipper Vans 66 67 - 
    Replacement Mower   27 27 - 
    Refuse Vehicle 155 155 - 
St John’s Depot Accommodation 18 13 5 
Upgrade to Bartec Collective -   (38) - 
Upgrade to Bartec Collective 40 22 18 
Crematorium – Priority works to Chapel 10 - - 
Crematorium – Provision of Parking and 
Resurfacing Works 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 22,185 21,382 563 

Page 56



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*Commercial Capital Property Funds 
 
 
At 31 March 2019, the £20m approved capital programme has been placed as follows - 
£3.989m with Threadneedle and £4.0m each with Schroders, Black Rock, M&G & AEW. 
 
Further information on the acquisition of property fund units, and their funding, can be found in 
section 7 above and in the Quarter 3 Treasury Management and Capital Strategy Update 
Report to Audit and Governance Committee on 28 January 2019 - 
 
http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=1293&Ver=4 

 
**Disabled Facility Grants 
 
The annual budget for 2018/19 is £748k, which comprises of £570k Better Care Fund (BCF) 
allocation (including additional funding of £53k received in January 2019) for the year and 
£178k carried forward from 2017/18.  The waiting list has now been cleared, although there is 
still a significant amount and value of cases being progressed. The speed of this is dependent 
on the clients’ agents and availability and capacity of contractors.  
 
Spend to the year ended 31 March 2019 was £416k with commitments of £159k, and a further 
£450k in the progress of being specified and priced by the Lincolnshire Home Independence 
Agency. In addition, a further £41k of the BCF has been committed to a project with other 
Lincolnshire District Councils and Lincolnshire County Council to support disabled children with 
urgent needs before appropriate adaptations can be delivered (£6k), and to make one of our 
Homeless Hostels Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) compliant (£35k).   
  
***Marginal Viability Fund (MVF) 
 
Drawdown is expected in four tranches equating to one payment of £1.682m in Quarter 1, 
2019/20 and three further payments making up £1.818m also expected in 2019/20. 
 

 
Recommendation:  
 
F2 To approve the updated capital programme as detailed in Table 10 
 

 

 

 

 

Capital Financing 
 

Latest 
Approved 

3 Apr 
2019 
£’000 

Outturn 
 
 
 

£’000 

External Grants and Contributions 1,324 824 
Capital Reserve 470 234 
Transformation Reserve 157 115 
Repairs and Renewals Reserve 34 17 
Housing Reserve 200 200 
I.T. Reserve - 3 
Borrowing 20,000 19,989 

 22,185 21,382 

Page 57

http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=1293&Ver=4


9 Consultancy costs 

 
Where specialist work is required, the Council seeks support from third parties when necessary.   
 
Table 11 – Consultants 
 

Consultant Q1–Q3 
£000 

Q4    
£000 

Activity 

Link Asset Services 8 - Treasury services (over the year) 

Anderson and Glenn 24 - Architectural consultant (over the year) 

    

Elysian Associates 1 - VAT Consultancy Services  

Heritage Trust of Lincolnshire 10 - Archaeologist services 

Total 43 -  

 

10 Debt Collection 

 
A review of debts is undertaken every month and monitoring is reported against targets. 
Approval is sought to write-off a Sundry debt over £5,000 shown in Table 12 where we have 
exhausted all recovery methods available to the council and the debts are unrecoverable.  
 
Table 12 – Sundry write offs 
 

Name 
 

 Balance 
£  

Year 
 

 Reason for write off  
 

Unit, Riverside Industrial Estate 5,850 2016-17 Ceased trading. Gone away, no trace. 

Total 5,850   

 
An analysis of the Council’s Sundry Debts held at 31 March 2019 is shown in the following 
table: 
 
Table 13 – Sundry Debt analysis  

 

 
Recommendation:  
 
F3 To write-off the irrecoverable Sundry Debt in the sum of £5,850. 

            

 

 

11 Supplementary Estimates 

 
Supplementary estimates reflect instances where the Council has received additional income in 
the quarter, notified since the formal budget was set and its use is for a specific purpose.  
 
  

Quarter 4 Not yet 
due 

0-30 days 31-91 
days 

92-365 
days 

Over 365 
days 

Total 

Amount £ 237,729 31,723 85,124 166,412 17,485 538,473 

Page 58



Table 14 – Supplementary Estimates  
 

Supplementary Estimates requiring Cabinet approval Amount 
£000 

MHLCG – High Street Community Clean Up 12 

MHCLG – Local Authorities Parks Improvement Funding 11 

Rough Sleepers Initiative 145 

Controlling Migration Fund 234 

Rapid Rehousing Pathway 160 

  

 

Recommendation:  
 
F4 To approve the supplementary estimates in respect of High Street Community 

Clean Up, Local Authorities Parks Improving Funding, Rough Sleepers Initiative, 
Controlling Migration Fund and Rapid Rehousing Pathway, as detailed in table 14. 

 

 

 

12 Insurance  

 
The number of insurance claims against the Council is relatively small. Although claims are 
higher than in the previous year, they remain in line with the past 4 years’ average. Not all 
claims result in the Council making a settlement payment. 
 
 A summary of the number of claims received, comparing them to 2017/18, is given below. 
 
Table 15 – Insurance claims received 
 

Cover Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

Public Liability 2 (0) 4 (1) 1 (0) 0 (1) 7 (2) 

Employer’s Liability 0 (1) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (1) 

Motor 1 (0) 0 (0) 2 (3) 1 (2) 4 (5) 

Property 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 

Total 3 (1) 4 (1) 3 (3) 1 (3) 11 (8) 

 
(Previous year comparison in brackets) 
 

13 Procurement Exemptions 

 
Under the Council’s Contract and Procurement Procedure Rules (specifically section 3.1.2 (9) in 
this instance), exemptions over £25,000 need to be approved by the Cabinet. There is one for 
this quarter -  
 
A procurement exemption is sought following the successful awards of 100% grant funding from 
the Government to the Council and partners (£145k under the Rough Sleepers Initiative, £234k 
from the Controlling Migration Fund and £160k from the Rapid Rehousing Pathway) to support 
initiatives assisting rough sleepers. Each funding stream has a deadline for spending. In 
accordance with the Contract and Procurement Procedure Rules, an exemption is sought under 
paragraph 3.1.2 to enable swift mobilisation of the support arrangements and continue with 
processes already in place to help rough sleepers move to appropriate accommodation.   
 
 
  

 

Page 59



 

 
Recommendation:  
 
F5 To approve the exemption in respect of the rough sleepers grant awards, namely 

the Rough Sleepers Initiative, the Controlling Migration Fund and the Rapid 
Rehousing Pathway. 

 

 

 

14 Localisation of Business Rates and Council Tax Support Scheme 

 
Table 16 – Localisation of Business Rates 
 

 
These figures represent the position for 
the current year due to the Council’s 
participation in the successful Lincolnshire 
100% localisation Business Rates Pilot 

Base 
Estimate 

Included in 
2018/19  

£ 

 Outturn 
 

2018/19 
£ 

Surplus in 
 
 

2018/19 
£ 

Business Rates income for the year 19,524,122 21,886,959 2,362,837 

Less: Lincolnshire County Council share 
(40%) 

 
(7,809,649) 

 
(8,754,784) 

 
(945,135) 

Boston Borough Council’s Share (60%) 11,714,473 13,132,175 1,417,702 

Renewable Energy Schemes 205,000 170,056 (34,944) 

Business Rates - Tariff adjustment (7,959,251) (7,997,600) (38,349) 

Levy Account Surplus Grant income - (40,804) (40,804) 

Business Rate Income credited to 
General Fund 3,960,222 5,263,827 1,303,605 

 
The outturn for the year to 31 March 2019 now shows an overall surplus against the base 
estimate of £2,362,837 of which £1,303,605 is Boston BC’s element (as reported in the budget 
papers to Cabinet on 20 February 2019).  This surplus, which largely arises from a review of the 
level of provision for Business Rate Appeals held by the Council at 31 March 2018, will carry 
over into 2019/20 retained business rates position, and will be used to calculate business rates 
income for the 2019/20 budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  
 
Business Rates Assurance  
 
This report covers the results for the first 2 years of the new 2017 Rating List up to 31 March 
2019, including actions arising from 2010 List changes.  
 
Of the 358 new cases finalised since 1 April 2017, a further 42 business rate assessments have 
been identified for the 2010 Rating List (making 238 extra ones from the start in 2014) and 79 
extra ones have been identified for the 2017 Rating List.  2017 List Rateable Value growth of 
£2.39m has been achieved so far from these cases.  The positive impact on rates payable 
across both Lists has been £0.90m (4.47%).  Boston’s net share is £0.49m and this is worth an 
extra £0.48m to this Council annually. Unfortunately this does not translate into additional 
funding for the Council overall, as there are other changes taking place that would, without the 
Business Rates Assurance Function, reduce the Council’s share of total business rate income. 
 
The Valuation Office Agency (the body responsible for maintaining the Rating Lists) still has 42 
rating appeals outstanding for the 2010 Rating List (equating to 1.8% of Boston’s total rating 
assessments in that List), and there is an appropriate provision in the Council’s Accounts for the 
potential losses associated with any successful appeals. There continues to be no meaningful 
data available on outstanding appeals on the 2017 Rating List, although the outcome of 
successful appeals is monitored as the appeals are determined. 

Page 60



 
Council Tax Support Scheme 
 
2018/19 is the sixth year of the localised Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme. Following the 
statutory annual review during 2017/18, the decision was made to go forward into this year with 
a largely unchanged scheme, but allowing for national up-ratings to be applied. This scheme 
continues to support the Government’s Welfare Reform agenda to bring further reductions to the 
national benefits bill. The continuation of the scheme sustains the required protection of those of 
pension age, protects vulnerable customers and encourages people into employment. A more 
fundamental review of the Council’s CTS scheme will not take place until the local impacts of 
Universal Credit (UC) are known, which is unlikely to be for at least two years given the pace 
and extent of introduction of UC in Boston. The first UC cases here are due to commence in 
September 2018.  
 
Whilst Collection of Council tax remains steady and on track against forecasts, there is still 
some uncertainty of the overall ongoing impact of CTS. In recognition, we continue to remain 
prudent in setting the bad debt provision in this area.  
 
The number recipients of CTS in 2018/19 continues to show a roughly even split between 
working age claimants and pensioners.  
 

15 Other Financial Matters 

 
Audit and Governance Committee 

 
A number of reports were presented to Audit and Governance Committee on the 28 January 
2019: 
 

 External Audit Plan 2018/19 

 Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-20 

 Treasury Management and Capital Strategy Update – Quarter 3 2018/19 

 Accounting Policies 

 Draft Internal Audit Process Report 2018-19 

 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 

 Work Programme   

 

A number of reports were presented to Audit and Governance Committee on the 25 March 
2019: 
 

 Certification of Claims and Returns – Annual Report 2017-18 

 Quarter 3 Risk Report 2018-19 

 Annual Governance Statement 2018-19 

 Review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference 

 Combined Assurance – Status Report 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018-19 

 Work Programme   

 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: CABINET 

DATE: 6TH JUNE 2019 

SUBJECT: BUSINESS RATES PILOT FUNDS 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR MIKE COOPER, LEADER 

REPORT AUTHOR: MICHELLE SACKS, DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

EXEMPT REPORT NO 

 

 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The Department of Communities and Local Government (now the MHCLG) sought 
pilot areas as part of the business rates localisation initiative and Lincolnshire was a 
successful applicant for pilot status in 2018/19.  
 
Under the this scheme Lincolnshire authorities have worked in partnership, on a 
voluntary basis, giving them scope to generate additional business through 
collaborative effort and to smooth the impact of volatility in rates income across a 
wider economic area.   
 
This report sets out where Boston’s fund is to be directed to support increasing 
economic activity within the Borough, in line with the pilot’s bid proposals. 
 
 

 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. To note the sum of £388k retained locally as part of the 2018/19 pilot initiative. 
 
2. Approve £18,500 to fund the EV Charging Project and delegate to the Deputy 

Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader, any amendments to be 
considered following the award of the grant. 

 
3. Approve £100,000 as a Relocation Incentive Fund to attract inward investment to 

the Borough and delegate to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the 
Chief Finance Officer and Leader, to agree the criteria and application process. 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 4



 
4. Approve the allocation of £100,000 to a fund to support the Business Nurture and 

Business Enable Schemes and delegate to the Economic Development Manager 
the authority to make awards in accordance with the procedures set out in the 
body of the report, in consultation with the Leader and Chief Finance Officer. 

 
5. To delegate to the Deputy Chief Executive the authority to make minor 

amendments to the procedures and criteria relating to applications to the 
Business Nurture and Business Enable Schemes, in consultation with the Leader. 

 
6. Approve £800 to support Lincolnshire County Council skills initiative to create 

Enterprise Advisers to link Schools and Business. 
 
7. Allocate up to £25,000 to High Street technology in accordance with the 

provisions set out in the body of the report and delegate to the Deputy Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Leader as to which projects should be 
supported. 

 
8. To receive future updates on proposals for usage of remaining funds as part of 

the regular quarterly monitoring process. 
 
 

 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Business Rates Localisation Pilot in 2018/19 has provided a real opportunity to 
fund a variety of projects the Council would not normally have resources to fund and 
will help deliver the objectives of the Corporate Plan and Economic Development 
Plan, whilst promoting strong links with stakeholders. 
 
 

 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
There are several projects detailed in the body of the report and there remains some 
unallocated funds. The projects are under constant review to ensure they provide 
value for money and maximise the benefits for the wider Borough. 
 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1 The Business Rates Localisation Pilot in 2018/19 was implemented following a 

successful bid through a countywide joint application to the Government. 
 

1.2 The Economic Development Manager researched and sourced a variety of projects 
devised to promote and deliver improved economic activity within the Borough of 
Boston, including one-off projects that may have an immediate impact, together with 
longer term projects that will build upon and enhance existing skills within the 
Borough’s workforce. 

Page 64



 
2. The Projects 

 
2.1 There are many projects in the pipeline that have demonstrable benefits to the wider 

community and these are set out in more detail below. 
 

2.2  Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Points 
 

2.3 The Government has made a commitment to support the development of Ultra Low 
Emission Vehicles (ULEVs) and referred to it in the Queen’s Speech in June 2017 as 
part of the Automated and Electric Vehicles Bill. In a further announcement in July 
2017 aligned to the Bill, the Government announced  plans to ban new diesel and 
petrol vehicles from sale in the UK from 2040 to greatly improve the air quality and 
carbon emissions nationally. 

 
2.4    Within the Borough, areas of the town of Boston, mainly John Adams Way, are 

considered to have poor air quality. The primary cause of poor air quality within 
Boston is due to high levels of vehicle emissions within or close to the town centre. 
  

2.5   One of the aims, notwithstanding the economic potential of introducing electric 
vehicle charging facilities, is to incentivise the use of electric vehicles in the Borough. 
Any switch from conventional diesel or petrol vehicles will have a positive impact on 
the air quality and wider carbon emissions across the Borough. 

 
2.6   Electric vehicles produce fewer CO2 emissions than traditional petrol/diesel vehicles 

and therefore will improve air quality. However, the Borough of Boston has very small 
number of accessible EV charge points, which currently inhibits electric vehicle 
owners coming to town. 

 
2.7   Increasing the number of accessible charging points will clearly promote Boston as a 

place that is actively encouraging alternative vehicle technologies to improve its air 
quality and the wider environmental impact. Also by making  the town of Boston 
more accessible to electric vehicle owners there is an  opportunity to make our 
shopping areas, parks and attractions a destination of choice. 

 
2.8   The proposal is to establish a network of EV Charge Points across six of the 

Council’s own car parks. 
 
2.9   It is proposed to provide electric vehicle only bays with the appropriate charging 

infrastructure pods capable of charging two vehicles simultaneously at the under 
mentioned locations following a recent survey undertaken by Rolec Services and is 
attached entitled Electric Vehicle Charging Point Proposals. 

 
A. Staniland Car Park: Two units allowing 4 vehicles to be charged
 simultaneously. 
B. Bargate Green Car Park: Two units allowing 4 vehicles to be charged 
 simultaneously. 
C. Cattle Market Car Park: Two units allowing 4 vehicles to be charged 
 simultaneously. 

Page 65



D. West End Car Park: One unit allowing 2 vehicles to be charged 
 simultaneously. 
E. Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre: One unit allowing 2 vehicles to be charged 
 simultaneously. 
F. Municipal Buildings Car Park: One unit allowing 2 vehicles to be charged 
 simultaneously and a further 5 wall charging points. 
 

2.10  The initial survey was carried out by Rolec Services Ltd, a leading  manufacturer of 
EV charging points and who is working closely with the Government Department 
Office for Low Emission Vehicles (OLEV) on manufacturing projects. Rolec Services 
Ltd are also supporting vehicle manufacturers in development of next generation 
charging, storing and discharging of electricity. Those manufacturers include: Kia, 
Toyota Renault, Jaguar Land Rover, BMW, Tesla and Hyundai. 

  
2.11  Rolec Services Ltd has manufactured over 100,000 EV charging points and over 

50,000 WallPod charging points and are working on commercial projects with the 
National Health Service,  DHL Courier Services, United Parcel Services, Dynamic 
Parcel Distribution and the Royal Mail on vehicle conversion projects.  

 
2.12  The proposal from Rolec is to install AutoCharge pedestals with ChargeOnline 

payment facility, together with a payment mechanism to allow the Council to recover 
any costs associated with the electricity consumed. 

 
2.13  The AutoCharge pedestals have socket ratings of 32amps (7.2kW) and can charge a 

typical vehicle from flat to full in 2-4 hours.  
 
2.14  The EV Charge Online system is web enabled, cloud based software solution 

designed to allow the host (Boston Borough Council) full management of their public 
facing EV charging network.  

 
2.15  The Charge Online systems allows the EV owners the ability to use any EV charging 

point within the network (inside or outside of the Borough) on either a pay-as-you-go 
or a preauthorised credit account using a mobile device, phone or tablet. The Rolec 
AutoCharge system is unique as unlike other providers there are no additional costs 
assisted with running an electric vehicle like, licence fees, connection fees and 
subscription or membership fees. 

 
2.16  This initiative has been developed to support key priorities as set out under the 

Prosperity theme within the Council’s Plan 2016/17 - 2019/20, mainly:- 
 

•  Promote and support inward investment into the Borough 

•  Support business development and growth for new and existing  
  businesses, and 

•  Infrastructure development 

Page 66



 

 
2.17  This Electric Vehicle Charging infrastructure project will have a major impact across 

the Borough in terms of better air quality, creating wider environmental impacts and 
an economic intervention making the town of Boston more accessible to EV owners,  
creating an opportunity to make our shopping areas, parks and attractions a 
destination of choice. 

 

2.18  There is a financial liability to the Council to implement the project as the table above 
(Table 1) indicates but funding in part will be sought through the Office for Low 
Emission Vehicles – Grants, to provide residential on street charge  points  for plug-in 
electric vehicles. 

 
2.19  In 2016 the Department of Transport launched the ‘On-Street Residential  Charge 

Point Scheme’, offering funding for local authorities to buy and install electric vehicle 
charge points and the Government urges local authorities to  take advantage of a 
£4.5 million pot of which only five applications have been received via this scheme. 

 
2.20  However, this funding option only supports 75% of the cost of procuring and installing 

charge points and therefore the remaining 25% is proposed to be supported through 
the Business Rates Retention Pilot Programme. 

 

LOCATION Western 
Power 
Distribut
ion 
Non-
contesta
ble costs 

Western 
Power  
Distribution  
Non-
contestable 
and 
Contestable 
costs* 

ROLEC 
Chargin
g Point 
Costs 

Civil 
Engineering 
Costs 
Estimated cost 
for excavation 
and installing 
concrete bases 
etc.** 

ELECTRICAL 
CONTRACTOR  
Estimated 
Infrastructure 
costs** 

Maintenance 
Costs (@£15 
plus VAT per 
socket 
per month over 
3 years) 

TOTAL 
(Not 
including 
Column 1) 

GMLP 590 2,228 1,626 1,000 1,500 1,080 7,434 

Municipal 
Buildings 

503 4,058 3,400 1,000 1,500 1,080 11,038 

Cattle 
Market Car 
Park 

1,179 2,106 3,253 1,000 1,500 2,160 10,019 

Bargate 
Green 

1,179 10,897 3,253 2,000 3,000 2,160 21,310 

Staniland 
Car Park 

1,179 4,193 3,253 1,000 1,500 2,160 12,106 

West End 
Car Park 

979 6,221 1,626 1,000 1,500 1,080 11,427 

Total 5,609 29,703 16,411 7,000 10,500 9,720 73,334 

Page 67



2.21  Return on investment and/or on costs have yet to be established, including parking 
charges or indeed loss of parking income but general maintenance and running costs 
should be minimal and envisage covered by users through electric extraction. 

 
2.22  Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Point infrastructure project will enable the Borough to 

deliver on key priorities including the improvement of air quality in and around the 
town of Boston through reduced vehicle emissions. 

 
2.23  Providing this level of EV infrastructure will enable residents, businesses and visitors 

to use electric vehicles every day and for those users to be confident, through 
strategically place EV points that they will be able to recharge vehicles quickly and 
conveniently.  

 
3  Relocation Incentive 

 
3.1  Relocation Discount is primarily designed to support local businesses wishing to grow 

and invest in the Borough of Boston. 
 
3.2  Our economy does not operate in isolation.  Competition for investment across the 

Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership (GLLEP) geography, including 
more locally across South Holland and South Kesteven, is fierce and the wider UK 
regions is pressurised. 

 
3.3  Business investments or the location or indeed relocation of any business are 

decisions taken after balancing a wide range of factors, including availability of land 
and premises, skills, access to markets, transport, infrastructure and broadband as 
well as operational cost. 

 
3.4  Some Boston businesses may have already relocated some or all of their  business 

to other districts, enterprise zones or parts of the UK where greater  financial support 
is available. However, this project is not designed to encourage businesses to 
migrate from one area to another simply in order to take advantage of NNDR 
discounting, as such an incentive is at worst anti-competitive and at best 
unsustainable. 

 
3.5   This project is designed to enable Boston Borough Council to compete effectively 

and on an equal footing with other districts across the region  (including those districts 
where incentivisations  are already active) and in the wider UK economy where other 
factors may disadvantage Boston Borough. 

 
3.6    Grant support could be offered to a ‘growth business’ able demonstrate to the 

satisfaction of what would be a newly formed ‘Growth  Board’ that the sum of the 
grant will facilitate or enable a reciprocal investment by that business which in will 
create or safeguard jobs. 

 
3.7   The ‘Growth Board’ could comprise of members of CMT, including either the Chief 

Executive or the Deputy Chief Executive. 

Page 68



3.8   The project application process has yet to be defined or even agreed, but the basis of 
the project is that for a “growth” business to qualify for a discount they must be 
invited to apply to the Growth Board through some form of an initial  ‘audit  of 
suitability’  carried out by the Economic Development Manager. 

 
3.9  Applications to the Council’s ‘Growth Board’ will be judged on individual merit and on 

a case-by-case basis. Applicants will need to clearly demonstrate how the grant will 
be used to grow the business and create jobs as any grant will be upwardly phased 
and time limited. 

 
3.10  A detailed financial  and business plan must be provided in all cases. The  Council 

reserves the right to refuse relief to any applicant.  
 
3.11  The initiative is designed to support and increase the Small and Medium Enterprises 

(SMEs) in the local economy and therefore the amount of financial support available 
to smaller businesses is greater. 

 
3.12  As mentioned in paragraph 3.7 the Growth Board will use a scoring  mechanism, 

which would need to be defined and based around the following criteria: 
 

-  Jobs created (more jobs higher to score) 

- Jobs safeguarded 
- Types of Jobs (higher skilled jobs - higher the score) 

- Amount of new floor space constructed, not just created 
- Amount of floor space occupied (Inward investment activity only,  
  although may want to consider business moving to larger   
  premises/employing more people as a result) 
- Credit History 
- Credible business plan, etc. 

 
4 Entrepreneurial Support Programmes 

 
4.1   This proposes a new programme of business enterprise funding to support 

entrepreneurs and growth businesses within the borough of Boston as part of the 
Council’s vision for prosperity, growth and opportunity. 

 
4.2.   Currently, there are over 2200 VAT/PAYE registered enterprises in the Borough of 

Boston with 85% of those in the micro definition of Small Medium sized Enterprises 
(SME). 

 
4.3    The Council Plan 2016/17 - 2019/20 supports the need for a strong economy, 

enabling it to grow and generate better job opportunities. This programme of support, 
funded through the Business Rate Retention Pilot will help respond  and rise to these 
challenges by increasing the number of startups, nurturing young businesses to grow 
and encourage greater investment and innovation. 

 
4.4   The Council will be the accountable body for the business enterprise funding and  will 

be administered through a ‘check and balance’ business panel made up 5 seats of 
prominent business oriented organisations and business leaders across the borough, 

Page 69



such as a Bank, a Solicitor, an Accountant and James Mitchell from SportsBike Shop 
and another business. 

 
4.5   The ‘check and balance’ panel will have the autonomy to administer funds using their 

professional opinion to provide robust challenge and scrutiny of business plans, 
appraisal of suitable and credible business ability and apply due diligence to avoid 
any exposure to potential risk, financial or reputation to Boston Borough Council. 

 
4.6    To develop a stronger economy by attracting investment and business to the 

borough and the increasing the opportunity to create entrepreneurs the enterprise 
funding will support economic participation across two themes, i.e. Enable Fund and 
Nurture Fund. 

 
The Enable Fund 
 
4.7   The Enable Fund programme will focus on assisting people whether in employment 

or not to start a business within the administrative boundary of Boston Borough 
Council.  

 
4.8  Grants up to £1000 will be offered recognising the difficulty in accessing start up 

investment, matched with 20% of their own funds.  
 
4.9  Successful applicants will be encouraged to engage with Business Lincolnshire 

Growth Hub advisers to support the business in its early stages. 
 
The Nurture Fund 
 
4.10 To help achieve sustainable growth and enable a strong economy for the borough the 

Nurture Fund will support young businesses that have less than 36 months trading 
and who are located within the administrative boundary of Boston Borough Council to 
make the next transition in their development. 

 
4.11 Grants of up to £5000, matched with 25% of their own funds will be offered to those 

businesses with credible businesses plans in place and are at the planning stage of 
considering developments that will increase productivity and growth of the business. 

 
4.12 Businesses that can demonstrate how the funding will make a measurable impact on 

business growth and productivity will be recommended for approval. 
 
4.13  Delivering this type of grant funding does carry some risks over and above the impact 

of financial or reputation damage to Boston Borough Council. These risks, together 
with mitigations have been set out in the table on the next page.  

Page 70



 

 

Risk 
No. 

Risk Element Mitigation/Control 

1 

Misuse of public funds (grant) following 
transfer of a successful grant award 

BBC to produce an agreement for 
administering the grant and setting out 
conditions of use 

2 

Low number or poor quality applications  Increase in marketing activity including to 
offer of application support through 
business support networks. Any 
unallocated monies to be reallocated to 
other Council projects/initiatives 

3 

Unsuitable applications submitted All applications will be scrutinised by the 
‘Dragons Den’ panel in line with the grant 
conditions 

4 

Unsuitable application are successfully 
awarded grant monies 

The panel will comprise of made up 5 seats 
of prominent business oriented 
organisations and business leaders across 
the borough, such as a Bank, a Solicitor, 
an Accountant and James Mitchell from 
SportsBike Shop and a another business. 
This ‘check and balance’ will ensure that no 
unsuitable application is awarded grant 
monies 

5 

The successful funding award between BBC 
and the applicant as agreed by the panel is 
not robust, or monies forwarded in good time 

BBC will produce a timeline of payment(s) 
so successful applicants can plan 
accordingly 

6 

Applicants fail, have poor growth or not 
aligned to the original application 

The panel will only fund ideas, projects or 
initiatives that they feel, through ‘check and 
balance’ have an opportunity to succeed. 
The funding agreement will set out 
guidelines/penalties to claw back monies 
should this funding be used for fraudulent 
or illegal purposes. Business Growth 
advisers will provide support and guidance 
to nurture the business  

7 

Poor governance The panel will provide any necessary 
reports setting out progress and decision 
making process on all applications  

 
4.14 A form of ‘Terms of Reference’ will be devised to safeguard and advise the panel on 
 compliance including conflicts of interest etc. 
 
4.15 Offering a programme of business support that will create a stronger economy, 

enabling it to grow and generate better job opportunities delivers a clear statement of 
intent that the Council, supports entrepreneurs to create businesses, encourage 
businesses to innovate and strengthen local job opportunities and promote inward 
investment. 

 

Page 71



 
4.16 The programme also supports key themes set out in the Economic Plan including- 

 

•  To promote and support inward investment into the borough 

•  To support business development and growth of new and existing 
 businesses 

•  To support employability skills initiatives 

•  To foster start ups and nurture entrepreneurs, and 

•  To encourage green innovation and infrastructure 
   

 
5. Support Enterprise Advisers 

 
5.1 This is a Lincolnshire County Council led project, which Boston has benefited 
 from as a pilot for the last twelve months. 
 
5.2 It is designed to promote greater links between schools and business advisers in  the 
 community, to promote aspiration and encourage our young people to consider 
 different career opportunities.  
 
5.3  LCC now wish to deliver this project on a countywide basis and the proposed 

 £800 will be the Council’s contribution to the rollout. 
 

6 High Street Technology  
 

6.1 As part of the background work for the Future High Street Fund submission, it was 
clear that High Street technology is an area that requires investigation and options to 
be considered to encourage consumers to use the High Street in different ways to 
increase visits. 
 

6.2 Work has been undertaken on an application that would promote responsibility for 
retailers to take action by signing up to new technology and provide a solution to the 
need for technology within town centres to start to meet the consumer’s expectation 
for digital interaction.  

 
6.3 There is regular interaction with the retail community and officers will continue to 

explore different options and alternatives before a final solution can be 
recommended. 
 

7    Primary Engineer 
 

7.1   The UK’s engineering industry is facing a skills shortage of unprecedented  levels and 
 the sector needs 1.8 million trained engineers and technicians by 2025. 
 
7.2 Over two million new entrants will be needed by the time today’s primary school 
 pupils reach working age. 
 
7.3 While the Government has prioritised a focus on work experience for pupils 
 aged 16 to 18, by then it is often too late, says the Science, Engineering and 

Page 72



 Manufacturing Alliance (SEMTA). “So many young people who have an 
 engineering skill and aptitude are lost to the sector because they’re not given that 
 encouragement earlier,” Children form ideas of “suitable” careers at a very 
 young age. 
 
7.4 Young people might already be turned off a career in STEM (science, 
 technology, engineering and mathematics) before they even reach secondary 
 school, and employers could do more to promote modern engineering. 

 
7.5 As local influencers, the Council has to start with promoting technology and 

engineering as an exciting and rewarding career to school-aged children. Most of 
today’s young people are interested in, and familiar with technology, be it mobile 
phones, the internet, social media or electronic games. All branches of engineering 
are impacted by technology and a point to emphasise thus, directly, and through 
teaching staff not working in isolation but hand in glove with sector specialists can 
encourage and nurture more pupils at an earlier stage to choose STEM subjects. 
 

7.6 Through the Primary Engineer initiative the Council starts to inspire the next 
 generation and by working collaboratively across the education system at all 
 levels and  proactively engaging business to invest in their skills gaps will in 
 turn, encourage and support the retention and growth of our local businesses 
 whilst  raising the profile as a place to invest, live and work. 

 
7.7  In response to the need to develop STEM skills, principally engineering skills in 
 young people in the Boston Borough area, is to provide a pilot programme to 13 of 
 the 25 Primary Schools and at least 4 of the 5 Secondary Schools in the area with 
 the Early Years Engineer, Primary Engineer and Secondary Engineer 
 programmes is being developed.  

 
7.8 The project will establish strong education and engineering industry links through 
 the delivery of sustainable engineering education programmes by training teachers 
 and partnering schools with engineers to work with teachers and pupils in the 
 classroom to develop skills, increase aspiration and heighten career awareness and 
 opportunities.  

 
7.9 As the Primary Engineer model is to provide Continual Professional 
 Development (CPD) for teachers, this allows for the programme to be inclusive (all 
 children are engaged regardless of gender, ethnicity or socio-economic 
 background) and sustainable with trained teachers able to run the programme 
 every year with a new group of children. 
 
7.10 Teachers will be partnered with engineers on the training day and to support the 
 programme in the classroom after, providing a real-world context to the learning, 
 offering children the opportunity to develop skills and behaviours through curriculum-
 linked engineering projects and meaningful engagement with engineers.  
 
7.11 Businesses that have shown initial support for the project are Metsawood Ltd, TH 
 Clements, Freshtime Ltd, Barhale, Anglian Water, Western Power, Lindum, 
 Mastenbroek, RAF, EEF - The Manufacturers Organisation to name but a few. 

Page 73

https://www.telegraph.co.uk/education/stem-awards/


 Companies that also want to be part of the programme and conversations are being 
 sort with BeeswaxDyson Farms, National Grid and Network Rail. 

 
7.12 Summary of the proposed funded programmes to be delivered across the  three tiers 
 of our local education system is: 

 

•  Early Years Engineer aimed at reception year - across both years of 
  funding 

•  Primary Engineer (Y2 and Y4) Structures and Mechanisms with basic 
  electrics in year 1 followed in year 2 by Elements of Control   
  Programming and Electronics and Computer Aided Design and  
  Manufacture. 

•  Secondary Engineer (Y8) Fluid Power Challenge in year 1 with Big  
  Data Rail Project and Aeronautical Enterprise Challenge in year 2. 
 

 7.13 The Primary Engineer project is a unique piece of work for the authority to 
undertake and one that will have a major impact across the borough in terms of 
economic resilience, creating interventions that can support business growth and 
act as an important inward investment tool. 

 
7.14 To support the project initially and enable it to gain traction over the first two years 

would cost  20k per annum with the anticipation that further support and legacy 
funding would come from the business community. These business conversations 
are taken place with favourable outcomes. 

 
7.15 We have a serious challenge ahead to nurture and develop the engineers and 

technicians we need to support, retain and grow our business community.  
 
7.16 Delivering this project across the borough of Boston we not only give: 

 
A. the confidence to business that we are listening to their concerns 
B. raising the aspirations of our young people  
C. highlighting the opportunities where they can develop a career and ‘not 

  just a job’ locally 
D. minimise the ‘brain drain’ leaving the borough, but also  
E. a trailblazing local authority creating innovative solutions that respond 

  to the challenge of supporting our young people into careers. 
 

CONCLUSION 
 

These projects provide a wide range of initiatives designed to work with many different 
sectors to deliver a boost to the economy of the Borough. 

 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The resources made available from the pilot will be placed into the Council's reserves 
initially. As specific initiatives come forward they will be included in the quarterly 

Page 74



monitoring reports for formal approval. 
 

 
 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council has a range of powers available to promote and deliver economic 
development, including the wellbeing powers under the Local Government Act 2000. 
 

 
 

 
EQUALITIES  
 
The schemes outlined in this report are designed to improve the environment for all. 
Individual schemes of work will be subject to an Equality Analysis in accordance with 
Council Policy under the Equalities Act. 
 

 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
Corporate Management Team 
 

 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Funding for Business - Nurture Fund 

APPENDIX B Funding for Business - Enabling Fund 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

NONE 

 
 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



APPENDIX B

Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: CABINET 

DATE: 5 JUNE 2019 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: LEADER 

REPORT AUTHOR: MONITORING OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
To consider appointments to various external organisations as set out in Appendix A. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Cabinet make appointments to the external organisations now indicated; 
such appointments to hold good only whilst the appointees remain Members of the 
Borough Council, until the next Annual Meeting of the Council, or until the 
appointment of their successors.  

 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Under the Constitution, those appointments to outside bodies connected with 
functions that are the responsibility of the executive (Cabinet) are to be determined by 
Cabinet rather than full Council.  
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
Not to make appointments to the external organisations appended to this report.  
 
 

 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 5



REPORT 
 
 
1. Appointments to External Organisations – 2019/2020 

1.1 Under the Constitution, some appointments to external organisations are 
delegated to Cabinet to determine.  A number of appointments to external 
organisations were previously held by Cabinet Members in line with their 
portfolios and responsibilities.  The Secretary of State advises that a local 
authority’s executive arrangements should provide that the executive will make 
appointments to outside bodies in connection with functions which are the 
responsibility of the executive, with all other appointments to be made by full 
Council, a committee or officer of the local authority.   

1.2 Members are asked to note that the guidance does not state that the 
appointments need to be filled by Members of the Cabinet and so are free to 
appoint any Member of the Council to any position.  The list of external 
organisations is attached to this report at Appendix A.   

 

2. Role and Responsibility of Members on Outside Organisations 
 

2.1  Members appointed as Directors 

The role of Members who are appointed as directors will be determined by the 
company’s Articles and Memorandum, which are the documents that govern the 
company.  In particular, Members must act in good faith in the best interests of 
the company (and not the Council) and must not fetter their discretion as to how 
they shall act, for example, by following Council policy unquestioningly.  They 
must also be careful not to place themselves in a position where their personal 
interests or duties to others, including the Council, are likely to conflict with their 
duties to the company.  

2.2 Members appointed as Trustees 

The role of members who are appointed as trustees will be determined by the 
governing documents of the charity.  Members may also be directors as well as 
trustees of the charity. Trustees must act reasonably and prudently in all matters 
relating to the charity and must always bear in mind the interest of the charity, 
and not let personal views of prejudice affect their conduct as trustees. All 
trustees should ensure that they are aware of the financial position of the charity 
and regularly attend trustee meetings. Where the member is also a director as 
well as a trustee the above mentioned also applies.    

2.3 Members appointed as Observers  

 Members appointed as observers to a company or charity can have regard to 
Council policy and will not have a prejudicial interest at Council meetings in 
respect of their appointment. It will, however, be up to each charity or company 
as to how much confidential information it makes available to an observer.  

 
 
 
 

Page 86



CONCLUSION 
 
Cabinet is requested to make appointments to the organisations appended to this report 
for 2019/2020.  The appointments made will hold good only whilst the appointees 
remain Members of the Borough Council, until the next Annual General Meeting of the 
Council, or until the appointment of their successors.  

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 

 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Under the Local Government Act 2000 appointments are an executive function. 
 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
List of available appointments has been circulated to all Members with a request that 
expressions of interest be submitted via the Group Leaders.  
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A List of Appointments to External Organisations 
 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government 
Act 1972 were used in the production of this report. 
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 
 

 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

COUNCIL REPRESENTATION ON EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 

ANNUAL APPOINTMENTS BY CABINET 2019-20 

 
 

Organisation Period of 
Appointment 

Previous 
Appointees 

Nominees 

 
Boston Health and Wellbeing Network  
 
 
 
Boston Strategic Health Group 
 
 
 
 
East Lincolnshire Community Safety 
Partnership 

 
Civic Year 

 
 
 

Civic Year 
 
 
 
 

Civic Year 

 
Health Portfolio 

Holder (Ex officio) 
 
 

Health Portfolio 
Holder 

 (Ex officio) 
 
 

Community Safety 
Portfolio Holder  

(Ex officio) 

 
P. Skinner  

Health Portfolio 
Holder (Ex officio) 

 
P. Skinner 

Health Portfolio 
Holder  

(Ex officio) 
 

P. Skinner 
Community Safety 

Portfolio Holder 
 (Ex officio) 

 

Boston in Bloom  Civic Year Portfolio Holder 
 (Ex officio) 

Welton 
Portfolio Holder  

(Ex officio) 
 

Boston Woods Trust  
(2 seats – Portfolio Holder and one non-
executive member) 

Civic Year Portfolio Holder  
(Ex officio) 
Brotherton 

 

Sharman 
Portfolio Holder  

(Ex officio) 
 

East Midlands Councils 
(1 seat and 1 alternative member) 
 

Civic Year Leader (Ex officio) 
Spencer 

Cooper 
Leader (Ex officio) 

 

Local Community Framework 
Investment Panel (Empower 
Community Foundation/Lincolnshire 
housing Partnership) 
 

Civic Year P. Skinner P. Skinner 

Local Government Association General 
Assembly 
 

Civic Year Leader (Ex officio) Cooper 
Leader (Ex officio) 

Tritton Knoll Local Liaison Committee 
 

Civic Year Brookes Cooper 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	2 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) (STANDING ITEM)
	3 QUARTER 4 REPORT - PERFORMANCE, RISK AND FINANCE
	Appendix A - Performance
	Appendix B - Risk
	Appendix C - Finance

	4 BUSINESS RATES PILOT FUNDS
	Appendix A - Funding for Business - Nurture Fund
	Appendix B - Funding for Business - Enabling Fund

	5 APPOINTMENTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS
	Appendix A - List of Appointments to External Organisations




